
1 
 

 

  

 
Glen Smith – Mayor 
JOHNNY TRAN –Councilmember Place 1 
JUDY CHAVEZ – Councilmember Place 2 

MARY CROCKER – Councilmember Place 3 
                    – Councilmember Place 4 
ANDY ERDELT – Councilmember Place 5 
Stephen McGovern – Councilmember Place 6 

  

 

CITY OF PALACIOS 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Notice is hereby given of a Regular Council Meeting of the Palacios City Council to be held May 
24, 2016, beginning at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 311 Henderson 
Avenue, Palacios, TX, for the purpose of considering the following items:  

 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION – Mayor Smith 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Tran 
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG – Councilmember Tran 
PLEDGE TO PALACIOS FLAG – Councilmember Tran 
 
VISITOR / CITIZEN FORUM 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

1. Hurricane Preparedness Week  
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED 
1. Discuss and consider appointing Mayor Pro Tem. 
2. Discuss accepting applications and appointing Council Seat Place 4.  
3. Present the Certificate of Election and administer the Oath of Office for Councilmember Place 

2 Judy Chavez. 
4. Discuss and consider awarding TxCDBG bid Contract No.7215359 to Lester Contracting, Inc. 

in the amount of $251,162.00 for the total base bid and alternates No. 1, 2 and 3. 
5. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Urban Engineering for the Hazard 

Mitigation Grant Project for Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Improvements. 
6. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Urban Engineering for the Hazard 

Mitigation Grant Project for Perryman Outfall Drainage Improvements. 
7. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Urban Engineering for the Hazard 

Mitigation Grant Project for Foley Addition Drainage Improvements. 
8. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Grant Works, Inc. to administer a Hazard 

Mitigation grant for Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Project. 
9. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Grant Works, Inc. to administer a Hazard 

Mitigation grant for Perryman Outfall Drainage Project. 
10. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Grant Works, Inc. to administer a Hazard 

Mitigation grant for Foley Addition Drainage Project. 



2 
 

 

11. Discuss and consider trash burning location.-Barney Aparicio 
12. Discuss and consider action to approve the following consent agenda items: 

a) Minutes of the May 10, 2016 Regular Council Meeting  
b) Travel expenses Mayor Glen Smith.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION   
In accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, (Open Meetings Law) the Council  
May go into Executive (closed) session in order to: 
Consult with its attorney (551.071)  
Discuss Real Estate transaction (551.072) 
Deliberation regarding prospective gifts or donation (551.073) 
Discuss personnel matters (551.074)  
Deliberation regarding security devices (551.076)  
Discuss economic development negotiations (551.087) 
 
ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
               
ADJOURN 
 
In compl i ance wi th the Ameri cans  wi th Di sabi l i t i es  Act,  the C i ty of  Pal aci os  wi l l  provide fo r  reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending publ ic meetings.   To better serve attendees, requests should be received 
24 hours prior to the meeting.  Please contact Ci ty Hall , at 361.972.3605. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I certify that a copy of the May 24, 2016 agenda of items to be considered by the City Council was posted on the City Hall 
bulletin board by 5:00p.m. on May 20, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION – Mayor Smith 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Tran 
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG – Councilmember Tran 
PLEDGE TO PALACIOS FLAG – Councilmember Tran 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 

VISITOR / CITIZEN FORUM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
1. Hurricane Preparedness Week  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





6 
 

 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



aflores
3. Present the Certificate of Election and administer the Oath of Office for Councilmember Place 2 Judy Chavez.



aflores
4. Discuss and consider awarding TxCDBG bid Contract No.7215359 to Lester Contracting, Inc. in the amount of $251,162.00 for the total base bid and alternates No. 1, 2 and 3.









 

 

May 16, 2016 
 
Glen Smith 
City of Palacios, Mayor 
311 Henderson 
Palacios, TX 77465 
 
Re:  LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 
Dear Mayor Smith: 
 
Thank you for choosing Urban Engineering to provide engineering services related to application 
preparation and implementation of your Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Hazard Mitigation Grant Project.  
The first order of business is to execute our Letter of Agreement. 
 
This letter shall serve as an agreement between Urban Engineering, (“Engineer”), 2004 N. Commerce, 
Victoria, TX 77901 and City of Palacios (“City”), 311 Henderson, Palacios, TX 77465 for the provision of 
Hazard Mitigation Application Development and Hazard Mitigation Grant Engineering Services (the 
“Services”) in connection with the City’s 2016/2017 Hazard Mitigation Grant Project for the Bethany 
Park Outfall drainage improvements (the “Project”) as administered by the Texas Division of Emergency 
Management (TDEM).  The Engineer will perform its services to the City as described in the Scope of 
Work attached as Attachment A and in accordance with the terms and conditions in Attachment D. 
 
The City agrees to pay the Engineer a not-to-exceed Total Fee specified in Attachment B for the 
satisfactory performance of basic services in accordance with the provisions of Attachment A.  Since the 
Engineer’s compensation is a fixed fee for basic services, including minor deviations described in this 
Agreement, compensation to the Engineer for additional services will only be for substantial deviations 
from the scope of services defined in this Agreement.  Substantial deviations would be billed at our 
standard rates as indicated in the Base of Compensation section.  The City is under no obligation to 
compensate the Engineer for additional services performed without the City’s prior approval.  
Reimbursable expenses, including expenses for reproduction of documents, auto travel mileage, 
lodging, delivery charges and freight are included in the Engineer’s basic services compensation.  
 
After the date of this Agreement and grant approval, the Engineer will submit to the City itemized 
invoices for work progress in accordance with Attachment A, Section IV.  The City will pay the Engineer 
within 60 days of receipt of each monthly invoice.  The City understands that TDEM will not accept a 
reimbursement request for its payments to the Engineer until the City accumulates at least $2,500 in 
total reimbursable project expenses.

aflores
5. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Urban Engineering for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Project for Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Improvements.



 

 

Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Engineer must be authorized 
by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement as Attachment C.  In no 
event will this agreement be increased to an amount in excess of the Total Fee specified in Attachment B 
without prior approval by the local governing body.  
 
Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by counter-signing and retaining one executed copy for your 
files and returning the fully executed original to Urban Engineering and provide a copy to Wendy Kirby, 
GrantWorks Hazard Mitigation Project Manager, at 2201 Northland Drive, Austin, TX 78756.   
 
City of Palacios  Urban Engineering 
By:   By:  

Glen Smith, Mayor 
 
 

 Thomas A. Schmidt, P.E. 
 
 

Date  Date 

 



 

Attachment A Page 1 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017 

 
I. ENGINEERING SERVICES 

The Engineer will provide the following services: 
 
Pre-Award – Application Development 
1) Assist the City in the preparation of an application to the Texas Division of Emergency Management’s (TDEM) 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for a Hazard Mitigation Grant within the guidelines and procedures 
established by TDEM, including meetings or workshops with the City as needed to develop the application. 

2) Complete a hydrological and hydraulics study to determine technically feasible and cost effective solution to 
the Bethany Park Outfall drainage issue.  

3) Assist with preliminary environmental and historic preservation requirements. 
4) Create preliminary benefit/cost analysis using FEMA’s current BCA tool software 

(http://www.fema.gov/benefit-cost-analysis) 
5) Create preliminary site survey, design plans/specifications and scope of work.  
6) Prepare a preliminary budget.  
7) Preliminary field testing and inspections. 
8) Other engineering services as required to prepare a completed project application packet to be submitted to 

TDEM by the assigned deadline. 
9) Assist the City in responding to any requests by TDEM review staff for clarification of or supplemental 

application information. 
 
Post-Award – Phase One (contingent upon award):  
1) Prepare the final survey, design plans/specifications and scope of work. 
2) Assist with final Environmental Assessment (NEPA) approval including Historic Preservation. 
3) Create benefit cost ratio using FEMA’s current Benefit Cost Analysis software tool based upon final plan and 

scope of work. 
4) Coordinate with FEMA during its review and in addressing any concerns or required changes to the project 

design. 
 

Post-Award – Phase Two (contingent upon acceptance by FEMA of Phase One) 
1) Attend initial State Kick-Off Meeting, if applicable.  
2) Create a final bid documents and notices. 
3) Coordinate bid opening and contract award process. 
4) Conduct pre-construction conference and issue Notice to Proceed. 
5) Review and verify contractor pay estimates and change orders. 
6) Provide technical assistance to City personnel who will be directly involved in the program.  
7) Work with the City to ensure project completion within the required 24-month time frame or extended 

Period of Performance, if applicable. 
8) Field testing and inspections as required to confirm contractor is performing according to plans and 

specifications.  
9) Complete a Certificate of Construction Completion and all necessary closeout documentation. 
10) Prepare other grant requirements as necessary. 
11) Respond to all requests made by Management Consultant in order to facilitate the grant progression.  
12) Create benefit cost analysis/ratio for final plans and any subsequent changes to the project. 
13) Designate a primary person to coordinate its performance of obligations under this Agreement. 

  

http://www.fema.gov/benefit-cost-analysis


 

Attachment A Page 2 
 

  

I. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 
The City will:  

1) Provide full information to the Engineer regarding the City’s requirements for Engineer’s services under this 
Agreement.   

2) Furnish the Engineer with copies of Project-related data and information in the City’s possession needed by 
the Engineer at the Engineer’s request.  

3) Designate a primary contact for the project who is authorized representative to act on the City’s behalf with 
respect to this Agreement.   

4) The City will examine the documents and information submitted by the Engineer and promptly render 
responses within 10 business days to the Engineer on issues requiring a decision by the City.   

II. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
A. The City may direct the Engineer to perform services outside the Scope of Services described in Section I.  
The Engineer will submit a written estimate of fees, based on standard rates indicated in Attachment B, to the 
City and obtain the City’s authorization before initiating any additional services.   
B. Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Engineer must be 
authorized by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement.  
Compensation for additional services will be for those services provided by the Engineer in addition to the 
services specified in Section I, Scope of Services. The approval of the City’s governing body is necessary for all 
additional services which exceeds the Total Fee shown in Attachment B.   



 

Attachment B Page 1 
 

Attachment B – Basis of Compensation 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017  

 
Contingent upon award and approval of FEMA of each of the Phases included in the project, the City agrees to pay 
Engineer a fee not to exceed the amount shown in the Total Fee line below. The City will be billed no more often than 
monthly for any tasks completed. The City will pay the Engineer within in 60 calendar days upon receipt of an invoice 
indicating the completed tasks.   

Payments and invoicing shall be made in accordance with progress on the following tasks: 

Deliverables Fee 

Pre-Award Services – Application Preparation and Submittal (except H&H)  

Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study   

Preliminary Benefit Cost Analysis/Ratio  

Post-Award Phase One Services    

Post-Award Phase Two Services  

Travel:  

Additional Services but not limited to:  
Technical assistance & advice 
 

 

Total Fee  

 
Hourly Rates:  $ XX.XX     
 
Phased Payment:  The Engineer understands and agrees that this project may be funded in phases and that each phase 
requires a separate notice to proceed from the City. Without such notice the Engineer shall not commence work on the 
phase and the City shall not be liable to the Engineer for payment related to that phase.  

 



 

Attachment C Page 1 
 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF CHANGE IN SERVICES   

 

PROJECT:   Grant Mitigation Engineering Services for Application Preparation and Implementation in 
Connection with City of Palacios Hazard Mitigation Grant Bethany Park Outfall Drainage 
Project 2016/2017 

ENGINEER:   Urban Engineering 

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER:  _________________________________________________________ 

ORGINAL CONTRACT DATE:     _________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZATION DATE:  _________________________________________________________ 

 

WORK TO BE ADDED TO OR DELETED FROM THE BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PREVIOUS CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT:  

URBAN ENGINEERING 

 

APPROVED BY:   

 

BY:  _____________________________________  DATE: ______________________ 

 

PRINTED NAME & TITLE:  ____________________________________________________________



 

Attachment D Page 1 
 

 

Attachment D 
Terms and Conditions for Engineering Services Agreements 

Utilizing Federal Grant Funds 
 

1. Standards of Performance 
 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Engineer will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised 

for similar projects by professional consulting firms who possess special expertise in the types of services involved 
under this Agreement. 

(b) Any provisions in this Agreement pertaining to the City's review, approval and/or acceptance of written materials 
prepared by the Engineer and/or its subcontractors in connection with this Agreement will not diminish the 
Engineer's responsibility for the materials. 

(c) The Engineer will perform all of its services in coordination with the City. The Engineer will advise the City of data and 
information the Engineer needs to perform its services and the City will assemble this data and information for the 
Engineer in a thorough and timely manner. 

(d) If the Federal Funding Accounting and Transparency Act applies to the Project the Engineer must obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System ("DUNS") Number and must register in the Central Contractor Registration ("CCR") 
System and prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, the Engineer will supply the City with both its DUNS 
and CCR registration numbers. 

 
2. Engineer's Records 

(a) All expense records of the Engineer related to this Agreement will be kept on a recognized accounting basis    
acceptable to the City and will be available to the City at mutually convenient times (applies only if the Engineer is to 
be reimbursed for expenses). 

(b) The City, its auditors and federal and state agencies that have monitoring or auditing responsibilities for this 
Agreement will have access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Engineer which are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, copying and transcriptions. 

(c) The Engineer will furnish to the City at such time and in such form as the City may require, financial statements 
including audited financial statements, records, reports, data and information, as the 
City may request pertaining to the matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
3. Ownership and Use of Documents 

 
(a) All documents prepared by the Engineer in connection with this Agreement are the property of the City. 
(b) The Engineer will deliver its records and supporting documentation relating to this Agreement to the City upon close-

out of the project and the City shall thenceforth be responsible for the maintenance of such records and documents. 
 
4. Patent Fees and Royalties 
 
(a) If applicable, the Engineer will pay all license fees, royalties, and other costs incident to the use of any invention, 

design, process, product or device subject to a patent right or copyright held by others in performing the work or in 
the completed project. 

(b) The Engineer will hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City, its officers, agents and employees from and against 
all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney's and expert witness fees, arising out of any claim of 
infringement of a patent right or copyright in the performance of the work or the incorporation in the work of any 
invention, design, process, product or device. 

 
5. Engineer as Independent Contractor 



 

Attachment D Page 2 
 

 
It is expressly agreed that the Engineer is an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, partner or joint 
venture with the City. The Engineer will not pledge or attempt to pledge the credit of the City. 
 
6. Designation of Engineer's Contact Person 
 
The Engineer agrees to designate in writing a single contact person assigned to coordinate the Engineer's performance of 
obligations under this Agreement. Any changes to this designation must be made by the Engineer in writing to the City. 
 
7. Term; Termination of Agreement 
 
(a) The term of this Agreement begins upon the date of its execution by the City, and will end upon the Engineer's 

completion, and the City's acceptance, of all services described in this Agreement. 
(b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 15 calendar days prior written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 
(c) This Agreement may be terminated at will by the either party upon at least 30 calendar days prior written notice to 

the other party. 
(d) In the event of termination as provided in this Section, the Engineer will be compensated for all services performed to 

the termination date which are deemed by the City to be in accordance with this Agreement. This amount will be paid 
by the City upon the Engineer's delivering to the City all information and materials developed or accumulated by the 
Engineer in performing the services described in this Agreement, whether completed or in progress. The expense of 
the reproduction of these items will be borne by the City. 

 
8. Insurance and Indemnity 
 
(a) The Engineer will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City and its employees, agents, officers and servants from 

any and all lawsuits, claims, demands and causes of action of any kind arising from the negligent or intentional 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of the Engineer, its officers, employees or agents. This will include, but not be 
limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs, reasonable legal fees, and all other expenses 
incurred by the City arising in favor of any party, including the amounts of any damages or awards resulting from 
claims, demands and causes of action for personal injuries, death or damages to property, alleged or actual 
infringement of patents, copyrights and trademarks and without limitation by enumeration all other claims, demands 
or causes of action of every character occurring, resulting or arising from any negligent or intentional wrongful act, 
error or omission of the Engineer and/or its agents and/or employees. This obligation by the Engineer will not be 
limited by reason of the specification of any particular insurance coverage required under the Agreement. 

(b) The Engineer will procure and maintain at its expense insurance with insurance companies authorized to do business 
in the State of Texas, covering all operations under this Agreement, whether performed by the Engineer or its agents, 
subcontractors or employees. Before commencing the work the Engineer will furnish to the City a certificate or 
certificates in a form satisfactory to the City, showing that the Engineer has complied with this paragraph. All 
certificates will provide that the policies will not be canceled until at least 30 calendar days written notice has been 
given to the City. Commercial general liability and motor vehicle insurance will be written with the City as an 
additional insured and will be endorsed to provide a waiver of the carrier's right of subrogation against the City.  
The kinds and amounts of insurance required are as follows:  
Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Act of the State 
of Texas. Liability Insurance: (1) Commercial general liability insurance with a combined single limit of $500,000 for 
each occurrence and $500,000 in the aggregate and (2) Motor Vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than 
$250,000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000 on account of any one accident and in an amount of not less than 
$250,000 for property damage. 

(c) The stated limits of insurance required by this Paragraph are minimum only--they do not limit the Engineer's 
indemnity obligation, and it will be the Engineer's responsibility to determine what limits are adequate. These limits 



 

Attachment D Page 3 
 

may be met by basic policy limits or any combination of basic limits and umbrella limits. The City's acceptance of 
certificates of insurance that do not comply with these requirements in any respect does not release the Engineer 
from compliance with these requirements. 

 
9. Copeland Anti-Kickback Act Compliance 
 
If applicable, the Engineer will comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 (the Copeland Act). The "Anti-Kickback" 
section of the Act precludes a contractor or subcontractor from inducing an employee –in any manner -- to give up any 
part of his/her compensation to which he/she is entitled under his/her contract of employment. 
 
10. Compliance with Laws, Rules & Regulations & Grant Requirements 

 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Engineer will comply with all local, state and federal laws. 

Specifically, funding for the Project has been made available with Federal funds. The Engineer will comply with all of 
the applicable federal regulations related to the application, acceptance and use of federal funds for the Project. 

(b) The Engineer shall comply with all requirements of the Hazard Mitigation Grant awarded to the City. To the extent 
any such requirement govern the operation of this Agreement, all such applicable requirements of the Grant are 
incorporated into this Agreement whether or not attached hereto. 

 
11. No Waiver of lmmunity 
 
The City's execution of and performance under this Agreement will not act as a waiver by the City of any immunity from 
suit or liability to which it is entitled under applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the City, in executing and 
performing this Agreement, is a governmental entity acting in a governmental capacity. 
 
12. Remedies; No Waiver 
 
In the event of a default or breach of this Agreement by the Engineer, the City reserves the right to choose among the 
remedies for the default or breach available to the City. These remedies may be used in conjunction with one another or 
separately, and together with any other statutory or common law remedies available to the City. Any failure by the City to 
enforce this Agreement with respect to one or more defaults by the Engineer will not waive the City's ability to enforce 
the Agreement after that time. 
 
13. Certification of Eligibility 
 
By submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals, the Engineer certifies that at the time of submission, 
he/she/it is not on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors. 
(a) In the event of placement on this list between the time of bind/proposal submission and time of contract award, the 

bidder/proposer will immediately notify the City. 
(b) Engineer certifies that its subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in any state or federal program. 
(c) Placement of Engineer on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors, false 

certification, or failure to notify City as required may result in City's termination of this Contract for default. 
 
14. Non-Collusion Certification 
 
The Engineer certifies that, if a proposal was provided that resulted in a contract, that proposal was made without 
collusion with any other person, firm or corporation. 
 
  



 

Attachment D Page 4 
 

15. Texas Department of Emergency Management’s Reporting Policy  
 
If the project cannot be completed within the assigned period of performance due to extenuating circumstances, an 
extension must be requested in writing by the City and submitted to the State at least 90 days prior to the Period of 
Performance.  The State requires quarterly progress report to be submitted on October 15, January 15, April 15 and July 
15 until project is completed.  Two consecutive reports indicating lack of measurable progress may result in forfeiture of 
funding.  
 
16. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
(a) This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas Exclusive venue for any dispute arising under this 

Agreement City of Palacios, Texas where this agreement is to be performed. 
(b) As to all acts or failures to act by either party to this Agreement, any applicable statute of limitations will commence 

to run and any alleged cause of action will be deemed to have accrued when the party commencing the cause of 
action knew or should have known of the existence of the subject act or failure to act. 

(c) The Engineer agrees not to use funds received by it under the terms of this Agreement for any partisan political 
activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

(d) The Engineer hereby affirms that Engineer and Engineer's firm have not made or agreed to make any valuable gift 
whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or promise to any person or any of his/her immediate family, having the 
duty to recommend, the right to vote upon, or any other direct influence on the selection of Engineers to provide 
professional services to the City within the two years preceding the execution of this Agreement. A campaign 
contribution, as defined by the Texas Election Code will not be considered as a valuable gift for the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

(e) In performing the services required under this Agreement, the Engineer will not discriminate against any person on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. The Engineer agrees not to engage in 
employment practices which have the purpose or effect of discriminating against employees because of race, color, 
sex, religion, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. A breach of this covenant may be regarded as a default by the 
Engineer of the Agreement. 

(f) The Engineer will comply with Executive Order 11246 of 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended 
by Executive Order #11375 of 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). 

(g) All references in this Agreement to any particular gender are for convenience only and will be construed and 
interpreted to be of the appropriate gender. The term "will" is mandatory in this Agreement.  

(h) Should any provision in this Agreement be found or deemed to be invalid, this Agreement will be construed as not 
containing the provision and all other provisions which are otherwise lawful will remain in full force and effect, and to 
this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 

(i) All services provided pursuant to this Agreement are for the exclusive use and benefit of the City and the Agreement 
will not give rise to any rights in third parties. 

(j) The City is governed by the Texas Public Information Act (the "Act"), Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. This 
Agreement and all written information generated under this agreement may be subject to release under the Act. The 
Engineer will not make any reports, information, data, etc. generated under this Agreement available to any individual 
or organization without the written approval of the City. 

(k) In the event that the performance by either the City or the Engineer of any of its obligations under this Agreement is 
interrupted or delayed by events outside of their control such as acts of God, war, riot or civil commotion, then the 
party is excused from such performance for the period of time reasonably necessary to remedy the effects of such 
events. 

(l) The City and the Engineer, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives 
to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of such other 
party with respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The City and the Engineer may not assign, sublet or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other. The Engineer will notify the City, in writing, of any 
change in its partnership/ownership within 30 calendar days of such change. 



 

Attachment D Page 5 
 

(m) The Agreement including any appendices and referenced attachments represents the entire and integrated 
Agreement between the City and the Engineer and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements 
either written or oral. In the event of a dispute between the parties regarding the intent of this Agreement, both 
parties agree that this Agreement will be construed in a manner consistent with the City's Request for Proposals, the 
Engineer's Proposal Response, and the public record of the City Council's approval of the Agreement as applicable. 
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument which must be signed by both the City and the Engineer. 
Any such authorization of change in services or amendment must be approved by the City's governing body unless the 
compensation for which does not exceed $50,000.00. 

(n) Any exhibits and/or attachments attached to this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as 
though included verbatim herein. In the event of any conflict between these Terms and Conditions and the provisions 
of any exhibit or attachment to this Agreement, these Terms and Conditions will govern and control. 

 

 



 

 

May 16, 2016 
 
Glen Smith 
City of Palacios, Mayor 
311 Henderson 
Palacios, TX 77465 
 
Re:  LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 
Dear Mayor Smith: 
 
Thank you for choosing Urban Engineering to provide engineering services related to application 
preparation and implementation of your Perryman Ave Outfall Drainage Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Project.  The first order of business is to execute our Letter of Agreement. 
 
This letter shall serve as an agreement between Urban Engineering, (“Engineer”), 2004 N. Commerce, 
Victoria, TX 77901 and City of Palacios (“City”), 311 Henderson, Palacios, TX 77465 for the provision of 
Hazard Mitigation Application Development and Hazard Mitigation Grant Engineering Services (the 
“Services”) in connection with the City’s 2016/2017 Hazard Mitigation Grant Project for the Perryman 
Ave Outfall drainage improvements (the “Project”) as administered by the Texas Division of Emergency 
Management (TDEM).  The Engineer will perform its services to the City as described in the Scope of 
Work attached as Attachment A and in accordance with the terms and conditions in Attachment D. 
 
The City agrees to pay the Engineer a not-to-exceed Total Fee specified in Attachment B for the 
satisfactory performance of basic services in accordance with the provisions of Attachment A.  Since the 
Engineer’s compensation is a fixed fee for basic services, including minor deviations described in this 
Agreement, compensation to the Engineer for additional services will only be for substantial deviations 
from the scope of services defined in this Agreement.  Substantial deviations would be billed at our 
standard rates as indicated in the Base of Compensation section.  The City is under no obligation to 
compensate the Engineer for additional services performed without the City’s prior approval.  
Reimbursable expenses, including expenses for reproduction of documents, auto travel mileage, 
lodging, delivery charges and freight are included in the Engineer’s basic services compensation.  
 
After the date of this Agreement and grant approval, the Engineer will submit to the City itemized 
invoices for work progress in accordance with Attachment A, Section IV.  The City will pay the Engineer 
within 60 days of receipt of each monthly invoice.  The City understands that TDEM will not accept a 
reimbursement request for its payments to the Engineer until the City accumulates at least $2,500 in 
total reimbursable project expenses.

aflores
6. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Urban Engineering for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Project for Perryman Outfall Drainage Improvements.



 

 

Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Engineer must be authorized 
by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement as Attachment C.  In no 
event will this agreement be increased to an amount in excess of the Total Fee specified in Attachment B 
without prior approval by the local governing body.  
 
Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by counter-signing and retaining one executed copy for your 
files and returning the fully executed original to Urban Engineering and provide a copy to Wendy Kirby, 
GrantWorks Hazard Mitigation Project Manager, at 2201 Northland Drive, Austin, TX 78756.   
 
City of Palacios  Urban Engineering 
By:   By:  

Glen Smith, Mayor 
 
 

 Thomas A. Schmidt, P.E. 
 
 

Date  Date 

 



 

Attachment A Page 1 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Perryman Ave Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017 

 
I. ENGINEERING SERVICES 

The Engineer will provide the following services: 
 
Pre-Award – Application Development 
1) Assist the City in the preparation of an application to the Texas Division of Emergency Management’s (TDEM) 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for a Hazard Mitigation Grant within the guidelines and procedures 
established by TDEM, including meetings or workshops with the City as needed to develop the application. 

2) Complete a hydrological and hydraulics study to determine technically feasible and cost effective solution to 
the Perryman Ave Outfall drainage issue.  

3) Assist with preliminary environmental and historic preservation requirements. 
4) Create preliminary benefit/cost analysis using FEMA’s current BCA tool software 

(http://www.fema.gov/benefit-cost-analysis) 
5) Create preliminary site survey, design plans/specifications and scope of work.  
6) Prepare a preliminary budget.  
7) Preliminary field testing and inspections. 
8) Other engineering services as required to prepare a completed project application packet to be submitted to 

TDEM by the assigned deadline. 
9) Assist the City in responding to any requests by TDEM review staff for clarification of or supplemental 

application information. 
 
Post-Award – Phase One (contingent upon award):  
1) Prepare the final survey, design plans/specifications and scope of work. 
2) Assist with final Environmental Assessment (NEPA) approval including Historic Preservation. 
3) Create benefit cost ratio using FEMA’s current Benefit Cost Analysis software tool based upon final plan and 

scope of work. 
4) Coordinate with FEMA during its review and in addressing any concerns or required changes to the project 

design. 
 

Post-Award – Phase Two (contingent upon acceptance by FEMA of Phase One) 
1) Attend initial State Kick-Off Meeting, if applicable.  
2) Create a final bid documents and notices. 
3) Coordinate bid opening and contract award process. 
4) Conduct pre-construction conference and issue Notice to Proceed. 
5) Review and verify contractor pay estimates and change orders. 
6) Provide technical assistance to City personnel who will be directly involved in the program.  
7) Work with the City to ensure project completion within the required 24-month time frame or extended 

Period of Performance, if applicable. 
8) Field testing and inspections as required to confirm contractor is performing according to plans and 

specifications.  
9) Complete a Certificate of Construction Completion and all necessary closeout documentation. 
10) Prepare other grant requirements as necessary. 
11) Respond to all requests made by Management Consultant in order to facilitate the grant progression.  
12) Create benefit cost analysis/ratio for final plans and any subsequent changes to the project. 
13) Designate a primary person to coordinate its performance of obligations under this Agreement. 

  

http://www.fema.gov/benefit-cost-analysis


 

Attachment A Page 2 
 

  

I. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 
The City will:  

1) Provide full information to the Engineer regarding the City’s requirements for Engineer’s services under this 
Agreement.   

2) Furnish the Engineer with copies of Project-related data and information in the City’s possession needed by 
the Engineer at the Engineer’s request.  

3) Designate a primary contact for the project who is authorized representative to act on the City’s behalf with 
respect to this Agreement.   

4) The City will examine the documents and information submitted by the Engineer and promptly render 
responses within 10 business days to the Engineer on issues requiring a decision by the City.   

II. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
A. The City may direct the Engineer to perform services outside the Scope of Services described in Section I.  
The Engineer will submit a written estimate of fees, based on standard rates indicated in Attachment B, to the 
City and obtain the City’s authorization before initiating any additional services.   
B. Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Engineer must be 
authorized by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement.  
Compensation for additional services will be for those services provided by the Engineer in addition to the 
services specified in Section I, Scope of Services. The approval of the City’s governing body is necessary for all 
additional services which exceeds the Total Fee shown in Attachment B.   



 

Attachment B Page 1 
 

Attachment B – Basis of Compensation 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Perryman Ave Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017  

 
Contingent upon award and approval of FEMA of each of the Phases included in the project, the City agrees to pay 
Engineer a fee not to exceed the amount shown in the Total Fee line below. The City will be billed no more often than 
monthly for any tasks completed. The City will pay the Engineer within in 60 calendar days upon receipt of an invoice 
indicating the completed tasks.   

Payments and invoicing shall be made in accordance with progress on the following tasks: 

Deliverables Fee 

Pre-Award Services – Application Preparation and Submittal (except H&H)  

Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study   

Preliminary Benefit Cost Analysis/Ratio  

Post-Award Phase One Services    

Post-Award Phase Two Services  

Travel:  

Additional Services but not limited to:  
Technical assistance & advice 
 

 

Total Fee  

 
Hourly Rates:  $ XX.XX     
 
Phased Payment:  The Engineer understands and agrees that this project may be funded in phases and that each phase 
requires a separate notice to proceed from the City. Without such notice the Engineer shall not commence work on the 
phase and the City shall not be liable to the Engineer for payment related to that phase.  

 



 

Attachment C Page 1 
 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF CHANGE IN SERVICES   

 

PROJECT:   Grant Mitigation Engineering Services for Application Preparation and Implementation in 
Connection with City of Palacios Hazard Mitigation Grant Perryman Ave Outfall Drainage 
Project 2016/2017 

ENGINEER:   Urban Engineering 

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER:  _________________________________________________________ 

ORGINAL CONTRACT DATE:     _________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZATION DATE:  _________________________________________________________ 

 

WORK TO BE ADDED TO OR DELETED FROM THE BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PREVIOUS CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT:  

URBAN ENGINEERING 

 

APPROVED BY:   

 

BY:  _____________________________________  DATE: ______________________ 

 

PRINTED NAME & TITLE:  ____________________________________________________________



 

Attachment D Page 1 
 

 

Attachment D 
Terms and Conditions for Engineering Services Agreements 

Utilizing Federal Grant Funds 
 

1. Standards of Performance 
 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Engineer will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised 

for similar projects by professional consulting firms who possess special expertise in the types of services involved 
under this Agreement. 

(b) Any provisions in this Agreement pertaining to the City's review, approval and/or acceptance of written materials 
prepared by the Engineer and/or its subcontractors in connection with this Agreement will not diminish the 
Engineer's responsibility for the materials. 

(c) The Engineer will perform all of its services in coordination with the City. The Engineer will advise the City of data and 
information the Engineer needs to perform its services and the City will assemble this data and information for the 
Engineer in a thorough and timely manner. 

(d) If the Federal Funding Accounting and Transparency Act applies to the Project the Engineer must obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System ("DUNS") Number and must register in the Central Contractor Registration ("CCR") 
System and prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, the Engineer will supply the City with both its DUNS 
and CCR registration numbers. 

 
2. Engineer's Records 

(a) All expense records of the Engineer related to this Agreement will be kept on a recognized accounting basis    
acceptable to the City and will be available to the City at mutually convenient times (applies only if the Engineer is to 
be reimbursed for expenses). 

(b) The City, its auditors and federal and state agencies that have monitoring or auditing responsibilities for this 
Agreement will have access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Engineer which are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, copying and transcriptions. 

(c) The Engineer will furnish to the City at such time and in such form as the City may require, financial statements 
including audited financial statements, records, reports, data and information, as the 
City may request pertaining to the matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
3. Ownership and Use of Documents 

 
(a) All documents prepared by the Engineer in connection with this Agreement are the property of the City. 
(b) The Engineer will deliver its records and supporting documentation relating to this Agreement to the City upon close-

out of the project and the City shall thenceforth be responsible for the maintenance of such records and documents. 
 
4. Patent Fees and Royalties 
 
(a) If applicable, the Engineer will pay all license fees, royalties, and other costs incident to the use of any invention, 

design, process, product or device subject to a patent right or copyright held by others in performing the work or in 
the completed project. 

(b) The Engineer will hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City, its officers, agents and employees from and against 
all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney's and expert witness fees, arising out of any claim of 
infringement of a patent right or copyright in the performance of the work or the incorporation in the work of any 
invention, design, process, product or device. 

 
5. Engineer as Independent Contractor 



 

Attachment D Page 2 
 

 
It is expressly agreed that the Engineer is an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, partner or joint 
venture with the City. The Engineer will not pledge or attempt to pledge the credit of the City. 
 
6. Designation of Engineer's Contact Person 
 
The Engineer agrees to designate in writing a single contact person assigned to coordinate the Engineer's performance of 
obligations under this Agreement. Any changes to this designation must be made by the Engineer in writing to the City. 
 
7. Term; Termination of Agreement 
 
(a) The term of this Agreement begins upon the date of its execution by the City, and will end upon the Engineer's 

completion, and the City's acceptance, of all services described in this Agreement. 
(b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 15 calendar days prior written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 
(c) This Agreement may be terminated at will by the either party upon at least 30 calendar days prior written notice to 

the other party. 
(d) In the event of termination as provided in this Section, the Engineer will be compensated for all services performed to 

the termination date which are deemed by the City to be in accordance with this Agreement. This amount will be paid 
by the City upon the Engineer's delivering to the City all information and materials developed or accumulated by the 
Engineer in performing the services described in this Agreement, whether completed or in progress. The expense of 
the reproduction of these items will be borne by the City. 

 
8. Insurance and Indemnity 
 
(a) The Engineer will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City and its employees, agents, officers and servants from 

any and all lawsuits, claims, demands and causes of action of any kind arising from the negligent or intentional 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of the Engineer, its officers, employees or agents. This will include, but not be 
limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs, reasonable legal fees, and all other expenses 
incurred by the City arising in favor of any party, including the amounts of any damages or awards resulting from 
claims, demands and causes of action for personal injuries, death or damages to property, alleged or actual 
infringement of patents, copyrights and trademarks and without limitation by enumeration all other claims, demands 
or causes of action of every character occurring, resulting or arising from any negligent or intentional wrongful act, 
error or omission of the Engineer and/or its agents and/or employees. This obligation by the Engineer will not be 
limited by reason of the specification of any particular insurance coverage required under the Agreement. 

(b) The Engineer will procure and maintain at its expense insurance with insurance companies authorized to do business 
in the State of Texas, covering all operations under this Agreement, whether performed by the Engineer or its agents, 
subcontractors or employees. Before commencing the work the Engineer will furnish to the City a certificate or 
certificates in a form satisfactory to the City, showing that the Engineer has complied with this paragraph. All 
certificates will provide that the policies will not be canceled until at least 30 calendar days written notice has been 
given to the City. Commercial general liability and motor vehicle insurance will be written with the City as an 
additional insured and will be endorsed to provide a waiver of the carrier's right of subrogation against the City.  
The kinds and amounts of insurance required are as follows:  
Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Act of the State 
of Texas. Liability Insurance: (1) Commercial general liability insurance with a combined single limit of $500,000 for 
each occurrence and $500,000 in the aggregate and (2) Motor Vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than 
$250,000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000 on account of any one accident and in an amount of not less than 
$250,000 for property damage. 

(c) The stated limits of insurance required by this Paragraph are minimum only--they do not limit the Engineer's 
indemnity obligation, and it will be the Engineer's responsibility to determine what limits are adequate. These limits 



 

Attachment D Page 3 
 

may be met by basic policy limits or any combination of basic limits and umbrella limits. The City's acceptance of 
certificates of insurance that do not comply with these requirements in any respect does not release the Engineer 
from compliance with these requirements. 

 
9. Copeland Anti-Kickback Act Compliance 
 
If applicable, the Engineer will comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 (the Copeland Act). The "Anti-Kickback" 
section of the Act precludes a contractor or subcontractor from inducing an employee –in any manner -- to give up any 
part of his/her compensation to which he/she is entitled under his/her contract of employment. 
 
10. Compliance with Laws, Rules & Regulations & Grant Requirements 

 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Engineer will comply with all local, state and federal laws. 

Specifically, funding for the Project has been made available with Federal funds. The Engineer will comply with all of 
the applicable federal regulations related to the application, acceptance and use of federal funds for the Project. 

(b) The Engineer shall comply with all requirements of the Hazard Mitigation Grant awarded to the City. To the extent 
any such requirement govern the operation of this Agreement, all such applicable requirements of the Grant are 
incorporated into this Agreement whether or not attached hereto. 

 
11. No Waiver of lmmunity 
 
The City's execution of and performance under this Agreement will not act as a waiver by the City of any immunity from 
suit or liability to which it is entitled under applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the City, in executing and 
performing this Agreement, is a governmental entity acting in a governmental capacity. 
 
12. Remedies; No Waiver 
 
In the event of a default or breach of this Agreement by the Engineer, the City reserves the right to choose among the 
remedies for the default or breach available to the City. These remedies may be used in conjunction with one another or 
separately, and together with any other statutory or common law remedies available to the City. Any failure by the City to 
enforce this Agreement with respect to one or more defaults by the Engineer will not waive the City's ability to enforce 
the Agreement after that time. 
 
13. Certification of Eligibility 
 
By submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals, the Engineer certifies that at the time of submission, 
he/she/it is not on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors. 
(a) In the event of placement on this list between the time of bind/proposal submission and time of contract award, the 

bidder/proposer will immediately notify the City. 
(b) Engineer certifies that its subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in any state or federal program. 
(c) Placement of Engineer on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors, false 

certification, or failure to notify City as required may result in City's termination of this Contract for default. 
 
14. Non-Collusion Certification 
 
The Engineer certifies that, if a proposal was provided that resulted in a contract, that proposal was made without 
collusion with any other person, firm or corporation. 
 
  



 

Attachment D Page 4 
 

15. Texas Department of Emergency Management’s Reporting Policy  
 
If the project cannot be completed within the assigned period of performance due to extenuating circumstances, an 
extension must be requested in writing by the City and submitted to the State at least 90 days prior to the Period of 
Performance.  The State requires quarterly progress report to be submitted on October 15, January 15, April 15 and July 
15 until project is completed.  Two consecutive reports indicating lack of measurable progress may result in forfeiture of 
funding.  
 
16. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
(a) This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas Exclusive venue for any dispute arising under this 

Agreement City of Palacios, Texas where this agreement is to be performed. 
(b) As to all acts or failures to act by either party to this Agreement, any applicable statute of limitations will commence 

to run and any alleged cause of action will be deemed to have accrued when the party commencing the cause of 
action knew or should have known of the existence of the subject act or failure to act. 

(c) The Engineer agrees not to use funds received by it under the terms of this Agreement for any partisan political 
activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

(d) The Engineer hereby affirms that Engineer and Engineer's firm have not made or agreed to make any valuable gift 
whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or promise to any person or any of his/her immediate family, having the 
duty to recommend, the right to vote upon, or any other direct influence on the selection of Engineers to provide 
professional services to the City within the two years preceding the execution of this Agreement. A campaign 
contribution, as defined by the Texas Election Code will not be considered as a valuable gift for the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

(e) In performing the services required under this Agreement, the Engineer will not discriminate against any person on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. The Engineer agrees not to engage in 
employment practices which have the purpose or effect of discriminating against employees because of race, color, 
sex, religion, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. A breach of this covenant may be regarded as a default by the 
Engineer of the Agreement. 

(f) The Engineer will comply with Executive Order 11246 of 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended 
by Executive Order #11375 of 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). 

(g) All references in this Agreement to any particular gender are for convenience only and will be construed and 
interpreted to be of the appropriate gender. The term "will" is mandatory in this Agreement.  

(h) Should any provision in this Agreement be found or deemed to be invalid, this Agreement will be construed as not 
containing the provision and all other provisions which are otherwise lawful will remain in full force and effect, and to 
this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 

(i) All services provided pursuant to this Agreement are for the exclusive use and benefit of the City and the Agreement 
will not give rise to any rights in third parties. 

(j) The City is governed by the Texas Public Information Act (the "Act"), Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. This 
Agreement and all written information generated under this agreement may be subject to release under the Act. The 
Engineer will not make any reports, information, data, etc. generated under this Agreement available to any individual 
or organization without the written approval of the City. 

(k) In the event that the performance by either the City or the Engineer of any of its obligations under this Agreement is 
interrupted or delayed by events outside of their control such as acts of God, war, riot or civil commotion, then the 
party is excused from such performance for the period of time reasonably necessary to remedy the effects of such 
events. 

(l) The City and the Engineer, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives 
to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of such other 
party with respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The City and the Engineer may not assign, sublet or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other. The Engineer will notify the City, in writing, of any 
change in its partnership/ownership within 30 calendar days of such change. 



 

Attachment D Page 5 
 

(m) The Agreement including any appendices and referenced attachments represents the entire and integrated 
Agreement between the City and the Engineer and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements 
either written or oral. In the event of a dispute between the parties regarding the intent of this Agreement, both 
parties agree that this Agreement will be construed in a manner consistent with the City's Request for Proposals, the 
Engineer's Proposal Response, and the public record of the City Council's approval of the Agreement as applicable. 
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument which must be signed by both the City and the Engineer. 
Any such authorization of change in services or amendment must be approved by the City's governing body unless the 
compensation for which does not exceed $50,000.00. 

(n) Any exhibits and/or attachments attached to this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as 
though included verbatim herein. In the event of any conflict between these Terms and Conditions and the provisions 
of any exhibit or attachment to this Agreement, these Terms and Conditions will govern and control. 

 

 



 

 

May 16, 2016 
 
Glen Smith 
City of Palacios, Mayor 
311 Henderson 
Palacios, TX 77465 
 
Re:  LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 
Dear Mayor Smith: 
 
Thank you for choosing Urban Engineering to provide engineering services related to application 
preparation and implementation of your Foley Addition Drainage Hazard Mitigation Grant Project.  The 
first order of business is to execute our Letter of Agreement. 
 
This letter shall serve as an agreement between Urban Engineering, (“Engineer”), 2004 N. Commerce, 
Victoria, TX 77901 and City of Palacios (“City”), 311 Henderson, Palacios, TX 77465 for the provision of 
Hazard Mitigation Application Development and Hazard Mitigation Grant Engineering Services (the 
“Services”) in connection with the City’s 2016/2017 Hazard Mitigation Grant Project for the Foley 
Addition drainage improvements (the “Project”) as administered by the Texas Division of Emergency 
Management (TDEM).  The Engineer will perform its services to the City as described in the Scope of 
Work attached as Attachment A and in accordance with the terms and conditions in Attachment D. 
 
The City agrees to pay the Engineer a not-to-exceed Total Fee specified in Attachment B for the 
satisfactory performance of basic services in accordance with the provisions of Attachment A.  Since the 
Engineer’s compensation is a fixed fee for basic services, including minor deviations described in this 
Agreement, compensation to the Engineer for additional services will only be for substantial deviations 
from the scope of services defined in this Agreement.  Substantial deviations would be billed at our 
standard rates as indicated in the Base of Compensation section.  The City is under no obligation to 
compensate the Engineer for additional services performed without the City’s prior approval.  
Reimbursable expenses, including expenses for reproduction of documents, auto travel mileage, 
lodging, delivery charges and freight are included in the Engineer’s basic services compensation.  
 
After the date of this Agreement and grant approval, the Engineer will submit to the City itemized 
invoices for work progress in accordance with Attachment A, Section IV.  The City will pay the Engineer 
within 60 days of receipt of each monthly invoice.  The City understands that TDEM will not accept a 
reimbursement request for its payments to the Engineer until the City accumulates at least $2,500 in 
total reimbursable project expenses.

aflores
7. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Urban Engineering for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Project for Foley Addition Drainage Improvements.



 

 

Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Engineer must be authorized 
by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement as Attachment C.  In no 
event will this agreement be increased to an amount in excess of the Total Fee specified in Attachment B 
without prior approval by the local governing body.  
 
Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by counter-signing and retaining one executed copy for your 
files and returning the fully executed original to Urban Engineering and provide a copy to Wendy Kirby, 
GrantWorks Hazard Mitigation Project Manager, at 2201 Northland Drive, Austin, TX 78756.   
 
City of Palacios  Urban Engineering 
By:   By:  

Glen Smith, Mayor 
 
 

 Thomas A. Schmidt, P.E. 
 
 

Date  Date 

 



 

Attachment A Page 1 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Foley Addition Drainage Project 2016/2017 

 
I. ENGINEERING SERVICES 

The Engineer will provide the following services: 
 
Pre-Award – Application Development 
1) Assist the City in the preparation of an application to the Texas Division of Emergency Management’s (TDEM) 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for a Hazard Mitigation Grant within the guidelines and procedures 
established by TDEM, including meetings or workshops with the City as needed to develop the application. 

2) Complete a hydrological and hydraulics study to determine technically feasible and cost effective solution to 
the Foley Addition drainage issue.  

3) Assist with preliminary environmental and historic preservation requirements. 
4) Create preliminary benefit/cost analysis using FEMA’s current BCA tool software 

(http://www.fema.gov/benefit-cost-analysis) 
5) Create preliminary site survey, design plans/specifications and scope of work.  
6) Prepare a preliminary budget.  
7) Preliminary field testing and inspections. 
8) Other engineering services as required to prepare a completed project application packet to be submitted to 

TDEM by the assigned deadline. 
9) Assist the City in responding to any requests by TDEM review staff for clarification of or supplemental 

application information. 
 
Post-Award – Phase One (contingent upon award):  
1) Prepare the final survey, design plans/specifications and scope of work. 
2) Assist with final Environmental Assessment (NEPA) approval including Historic Preservation. 
3) Create benefit cost ratio using FEMA’s current Benefit Cost Analysis software tool based upon final plan and 

scope of work. 
4) Coordinate with FEMA during its review and in addressing any concerns or required changes to the project 

design. 
 

Post-Award – Phase Two (contingent upon acceptance by FEMA of Phase One) 
1) Attend initial State Kick-Off Meeting, if applicable.  
2) Create a final bid documents and notices. 
3) Coordinate bid opening and contract award process. 
4) Conduct pre-construction conference and issue Notice to Proceed. 
5) Review and verify contractor pay estimates and change orders. 
6) Provide technical assistance to City personnel who will be directly involved in the program.  
7) Work with the City to ensure project completion within the required 24-month time frame or extended 

Period of Performance, if applicable. 
8) Field testing and inspections as required to confirm contractor is performing according to plans and 

specifications.  
9) Complete a Certificate of Construction Completion and all necessary closeout documentation. 
10) Prepare other grant requirements as necessary. 
11) Respond to all requests made by Management Consultant in order to facilitate the grant progression.  
12) Create benefit cost analysis/ratio for final plans and any subsequent changes to the project. 
13) Designate a primary person to coordinate its performance of obligations under this Agreement. 

  

http://www.fema.gov/benefit-cost-analysis


 

Attachment A Page 2 
 

  

I. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 
The City will:  

1) Provide full information to the Engineer regarding the City’s requirements for Engineer’s services under this 
Agreement.   

2) Furnish the Engineer with copies of Project-related data and information in the City’s possession needed by 
the Engineer at the Engineer’s request.  

3) Designate a primary contact for the project who is authorized representative to act on the City’s behalf with 
respect to this Agreement.   

4) The City will examine the documents and information submitted by the Engineer and promptly render 
responses within 10 business days to the Engineer on issues requiring a decision by the City.   

II. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
A. The City may direct the Engineer to perform services outside the Scope of Services described in Section I.  
The Engineer will submit a written estimate of fees, based on standard rates indicated in Attachment B, to the 
City and obtain the City’s authorization before initiating any additional services.   
B. Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Engineer must be 
authorized by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement.  
Compensation for additional services will be for those services provided by the Engineer in addition to the 
services specified in Section I, Scope of Services. The approval of the City’s governing body is necessary for all 
additional services which exceeds the Total Fee shown in Attachment B.   



 

Attachment B Page 1 
 

Attachment B – Basis of Compensation 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Foley Addition Drainage Project 2016/2017  

 
Contingent upon award and approval of FEMA of each of the Phases included in the project, the City agrees to pay 
Engineer a fee not to exceed the amount shown in the Total Fee line below. The City will be billed no more often than 
monthly for any tasks completed. The City will pay the Engineer within in 60 calendar days upon receipt of an invoice 
indicating the completed tasks.   

Payments and invoicing shall be made in accordance with progress on the following tasks: 

Deliverables Fee 

Pre-Award Services – Application Preparation and Submittal (except H&H)  

Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study   

Preliminary Benefit Cost Analysis/Ratio  

Post-Award Phase One Services    

Post-Award Phase Two Services  

Travel:  

Additional Services but not limited to:  
Technical assistance & advice 
 

 

Total Fee  

 
Hourly Rates:  $ XX.XX     
 
Phased Payment:  The Engineer understands and agrees that this project may be funded in phases and that each phase 
requires a separate notice to proceed from the City. Without such notice the Engineer shall not commence work on the 
phase and the City shall not be liable to the Engineer for payment related to that phase.  

 



 

Attachment C Page 1 
 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF CHANGE IN SERVICES   

 

PROJECT:   Grant Mitigation Engineering Services for Application Preparation and Implementation in 
Connection with City of Palacios Hazard Mitigation Grant Foley Addition Drainage Project 
2016/2017 

ENGINEER:   Urban Engineering 

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER:  _________________________________________________________ 

ORGINAL CONTRACT DATE:     _________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZATION DATE:  _________________________________________________________ 

 

WORK TO BE ADDED TO OR DELETED FROM THE BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PREVIOUS CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT:  

URBAN ENGINEERING 

 

APPROVED BY:   

 

BY:  _____________________________________  DATE: ______________________ 

 

PRINTED NAME & TITLE:  ____________________________________________________________



 

Attachment D Page 1 
 

 

Attachment D 
Terms and Conditions for Engineering Services Agreements 

Utilizing Federal Grant Funds 
 

1. Standards of Performance 
 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Engineer will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised 

for similar projects by professional consulting firms who possess special expertise in the types of services involved 
under this Agreement. 

(b) Any provisions in this Agreement pertaining to the City's review, approval and/or acceptance of written materials 
prepared by the Engineer and/or its subcontractors in connection with this Agreement will not diminish the 
Engineer's responsibility for the materials. 

(c) The Engineer will perform all of its services in coordination with the City. The Engineer will advise the City of data and 
information the Engineer needs to perform its services and the City will assemble this data and information for the 
Engineer in a thorough and timely manner. 

(d) If the Federal Funding Accounting and Transparency Act applies to the Project the Engineer must obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System ("DUNS") Number and must register in the Central Contractor Registration ("CCR") 
System and prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, the Engineer will supply the City with both its DUNS 
and CCR registration numbers. 

 
2. Engineer's Records 

(a) All expense records of the Engineer related to this Agreement will be kept on a recognized accounting basis    
acceptable to the City and will be available to the City at mutually convenient times (applies only if the Engineer is to 
be reimbursed for expenses). 

(b) The City, its auditors and federal and state agencies that have monitoring or auditing responsibilities for this 
Agreement will have access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Engineer which are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, copying and transcriptions. 

(c) The Engineer will furnish to the City at such time and in such form as the City may require, financial statements 
including audited financial statements, records, reports, data and information, as the 
City may request pertaining to the matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
3. Ownership and Use of Documents 

 
(a) All documents prepared by the Engineer in connection with this Agreement are the property of the City. 
(b) The Engineer will deliver its records and supporting documentation relating to this Agreement to the City upon close-

out of the project and the City shall thenceforth be responsible for the maintenance of such records and documents. 
 
4. Patent Fees and Royalties 
 
(a) If applicable, the Engineer will pay all license fees, royalties, and other costs incident to the use of any invention, 

design, process, product or device subject to a patent right or copyright held by others in performing the work or in 
the completed project. 

(b) The Engineer will hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City, its officers, agents and employees from and against 
all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney's and expert witness fees, arising out of any claim of 
infringement of a patent right or copyright in the performance of the work or the incorporation in the work of any 
invention, design, process, product or device. 

 
5. Engineer as Independent Contractor 



 

Attachment D Page 2 
 

 
It is expressly agreed that the Engineer is an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, partner or joint 
venture with the City. The Engineer will not pledge or attempt to pledge the credit of the City. 
 
6. Designation of Engineer's Contact Person 
 
The Engineer agrees to designate in writing a single contact person assigned to coordinate the Engineer's performance of 
obligations under this Agreement. Any changes to this designation must be made by the Engineer in writing to the City. 
 
7. Term; Termination of Agreement 
 
(a) The term of this Agreement begins upon the date of its execution by the City, and will end upon the Engineer's 

completion, and the City's acceptance, of all services described in this Agreement. 
(b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 15 calendar days prior written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 
(c) This Agreement may be terminated at will by the either party upon at least 30 calendar days prior written notice to 

the other party. 
(d) In the event of termination as provided in this Section, the Engineer will be compensated for all services performed to 

the termination date which are deemed by the City to be in accordance with this Agreement. This amount will be paid 
by the City upon the Engineer's delivering to the City all information and materials developed or accumulated by the 
Engineer in performing the services described in this Agreement, whether completed or in progress. The expense of 
the reproduction of these items will be borne by the City. 

 
8. Insurance and Indemnity 
 
(a) The Engineer will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City and its employees, agents, officers and servants from 

any and all lawsuits, claims, demands and causes of action of any kind arising from the negligent or intentional 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of the Engineer, its officers, employees or agents. This will include, but not be 
limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs, reasonable legal fees, and all other expenses 
incurred by the City arising in favor of any party, including the amounts of any damages or awards resulting from 
claims, demands and causes of action for personal injuries, death or damages to property, alleged or actual 
infringement of patents, copyrights and trademarks and without limitation by enumeration all other claims, demands 
or causes of action of every character occurring, resulting or arising from any negligent or intentional wrongful act, 
error or omission of the Engineer and/or its agents and/or employees. This obligation by the Engineer will not be 
limited by reason of the specification of any particular insurance coverage required under the Agreement. 

(b) The Engineer will procure and maintain at its expense insurance with insurance companies authorized to do business 
in the State of Texas, covering all operations under this Agreement, whether performed by the Engineer or its agents, 
subcontractors or employees. Before commencing the work the Engineer will furnish to the City a certificate or 
certificates in a form satisfactory to the City, showing that the Engineer has complied with this paragraph. All 
certificates will provide that the policies will not be canceled until at least 30 calendar days written notice has been 
given to the City. Commercial general liability and motor vehicle insurance will be written with the City as an 
additional insured and will be endorsed to provide a waiver of the carrier's right of subrogation against the City.  
The kinds and amounts of insurance required are as follows:  
Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Act of the State 
of Texas. Liability Insurance: (1) Commercial general liability insurance with a combined single limit of $500,000 for 
each occurrence and $500,000 in the aggregate and (2) Motor Vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than 
$250,000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000 on account of any one accident and in an amount of not less than 
$250,000 for property damage. 

(c) The stated limits of insurance required by this Paragraph are minimum only--they do not limit the Engineer's 
indemnity obligation, and it will be the Engineer's responsibility to determine what limits are adequate. These limits 



 

Attachment D Page 3 
 

may be met by basic policy limits or any combination of basic limits and umbrella limits. The City's acceptance of 
certificates of insurance that do not comply with these requirements in any respect does not release the Engineer 
from compliance with these requirements. 

 
9. Copeland Anti-Kickback Act Compliance 
 
If applicable, the Engineer will comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 (the Copeland Act). The "Anti-Kickback" 
section of the Act precludes a contractor or subcontractor from inducing an employee –in any manner -- to give up any 
part of his/her compensation to which he/she is entitled under his/her contract of employment. 
 
10. Compliance with Laws, Rules & Regulations & Grant Requirements 

 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Engineer will comply with all local, state and federal laws. 

Specifically, funding for the Project has been made available with Federal funds. The Engineer will comply with all of 
the applicable federal regulations related to the application, acceptance and use of federal funds for the Project. 

(b) The Engineer shall comply with all requirements of the Hazard Mitigation Grant awarded to the City. To the extent 
any such requirement govern the operation of this Agreement, all such applicable requirements of the Grant are 
incorporated into this Agreement whether or not attached hereto. 

 
11. No Waiver of lmmunity 
 
The City's execution of and performance under this Agreement will not act as a waiver by the City of any immunity from 
suit or liability to which it is entitled under applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the City, in executing and 
performing this Agreement, is a governmental entity acting in a governmental capacity. 
 
12. Remedies; No Waiver 
 
In the event of a default or breach of this Agreement by the Engineer, the City reserves the right to choose among the 
remedies for the default or breach available to the City. These remedies may be used in conjunction with one another or 
separately, and together with any other statutory or common law remedies available to the City. Any failure by the City to 
enforce this Agreement with respect to one or more defaults by the Engineer will not waive the City's ability to enforce 
the Agreement after that time. 
 
13. Certification of Eligibility 
 
By submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals, the Engineer certifies that at the time of submission, 
he/she/it is not on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors. 
(a) In the event of placement on this list between the time of bind/proposal submission and time of contract award, the 

bidder/proposer will immediately notify the City. 
(b) Engineer certifies that its subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in any state or federal program. 
(c) Placement of Engineer on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors, false 

certification, or failure to notify City as required may result in City's termination of this Contract for default. 
 
14. Non-Collusion Certification 
 
The Engineer certifies that, if a proposal was provided that resulted in a contract, that proposal was made without 
collusion with any other person, firm or corporation. 
 
  



 

Attachment D Page 4 
 

15. Texas Department of Emergency Management’s Reporting Policy  
 
If the project cannot be completed within the assigned period of performance due to extenuating circumstances, an 
extension must be requested in writing by the City and submitted to the State at least 90 days prior to the Period of 
Performance.  The State requires quarterly progress report to be submitted on October 15, January 15, April 15 and July 
15 until project is completed.  Two consecutive reports indicating lack of measurable progress may result in forfeiture of 
funding.  
 
16. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
(a) This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas Exclusive venue for any dispute arising under this 

Agreement City of Palacios, Texas where this agreement is to be performed. 
(b) As to all acts or failures to act by either party to this Agreement, any applicable statute of limitations will commence 

to run and any alleged cause of action will be deemed to have accrued when the party commencing the cause of 
action knew or should have known of the existence of the subject act or failure to act. 

(c) The Engineer agrees not to use funds received by it under the terms of this Agreement for any partisan political 
activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

(d) The Engineer hereby affirms that Engineer and Engineer's firm have not made or agreed to make any valuable gift 
whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or promise to any person or any of his/her immediate family, having the 
duty to recommend, the right to vote upon, or any other direct influence on the selection of Engineers to provide 
professional services to the City within the two years preceding the execution of this Agreement. A campaign 
contribution, as defined by the Texas Election Code will not be considered as a valuable gift for the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

(e) In performing the services required under this Agreement, the Engineer will not discriminate against any person on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. The Engineer agrees not to engage in 
employment practices which have the purpose or effect of discriminating against employees because of race, color, 
sex, religion, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. A breach of this covenant may be regarded as a default by the 
Engineer of the Agreement. 

(f) The Engineer will comply with Executive Order 11246 of 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended 
by Executive Order #11375 of 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). 

(g) All references in this Agreement to any particular gender are for convenience only and will be construed and 
interpreted to be of the appropriate gender. The term "will" is mandatory in this Agreement.  

(h) Should any provision in this Agreement be found or deemed to be invalid, this Agreement will be construed as not 
containing the provision and all other provisions which are otherwise lawful will remain in full force and effect, and to 
this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 

(i) All services provided pursuant to this Agreement are for the exclusive use and benefit of the City and the Agreement 
will not give rise to any rights in third parties. 

(j) The City is governed by the Texas Public Information Act (the "Act"), Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. This 
Agreement and all written information generated under this agreement may be subject to release under the Act. The 
Engineer will not make any reports, information, data, etc. generated under this Agreement available to any individual 
or organization without the written approval of the City. 

(k) In the event that the performance by either the City or the Engineer of any of its obligations under this Agreement is 
interrupted or delayed by events outside of their control such as acts of God, war, riot or civil commotion, then the 
party is excused from such performance for the period of time reasonably necessary to remedy the effects of such 
events. 

(l) The City and the Engineer, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives 
to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of such other 
party with respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The City and the Engineer may not assign, sublet or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other. The Engineer will notify the City, in writing, of any 
change in its partnership/ownership within 30 calendar days of such change. 



 

Attachment D Page 5 
 

(m) The Agreement including any appendices and referenced attachments represents the entire and integrated 
Agreement between the City and the Engineer and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements 
either written or oral. In the event of a dispute between the parties regarding the intent of this Agreement, both 
parties agree that this Agreement will be construed in a manner consistent with the City's Request for Proposals, the 
Engineer's Proposal Response, and the public record of the City Council's approval of the Agreement as applicable. 
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument which must be signed by both the City and the Engineer. 
Any such authorization of change in services or amendment must be approved by the City's governing body unless the 
compensation for which does not exceed $50,000.00. 

(n) Any exhibits and/or attachments attached to this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as 
though included verbatim herein. In the event of any conflict between these Terms and Conditions and the provisions 
of any exhibit or attachment to this Agreement, these Terms and Conditions will govern and control. 

 

 



         
 
 
 
 

 

 

Bruce Spitzengel, President 
Wendy Kirby, CFM 

Hazard Mitigation Project Manager 
2201 Northland Drive ● Austin, Texas  78756 
P (512) 420‐0303 x337 ● F (800) 407‐5532 

wendy@grantworks.net ● www. grantworks.net 

Planning, Housing, and Community  
Development Services for Texas Since 1979 

May 13, 2016 
 
Glen Smith 
Mayor, City of Palacios  
311 Henderson 
Palacios, TX 77465 
 
Re:  LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 
Dear Mayor Smith: 
 
Thank you for choosing GrantWorks to administer your Hazard Mitigation Bethany Park Outfall Drainage 
project.  The first order of business is to execute our Letter of Agreement. 
 
This  letter shall serve as an agreement between GrantWorks,  Inc.  (“Consultant”), 2201 Northland Dr., 
Austin, TX 78756 and the City of Palacios (“City”), 311 Henderson, Palacios, TX 77465 for the provision of 
Hazard Mitigation  Application  Preparation  and  Hazard Mitigation  Grant Management  Services  (the 
“Services”)  in connection with the City’s 2016/2017 Hazard Mitigation Grant Project (the “Project”) as 
administered by the Texas Division of Emergency Management (TDEM).  The Consultant will perform its 
services to the City as described in the Scope of Work attached as Attachment A and in accordance with 
the terms and conditions in Attachment D. 
 
The  City  agrees  to  pay  the  Consultant  a  not‐to‐exceed  Total  Fee  specified  in  Attachment  B  for  the 
satisfactory performance of basic services in accordance with the provisions of Attachment A.  Since the 
Consultant’s compensation is a fixed fee for basic services, including minor deviations described in this 
Agreement, compensation to the Consultant for additional services will only be for substantial deviations 
from  the  scope of  services defined  in  this Agreement.    Substantial deviations would be billed at our 
standard  rates as  indicated  in  the Base of Compensation  section.   The City  is under no obligation  to 
compensate  the  Consultant  for  additional  services  performed  without  the  City’s  prior  approval.  
Reimbursable expenses, including expenses for reproduction of documents, auto travel mileage, lodging, 
delivery charges and freight are included in the consultant’s basic services compensation.  
 
After  the date of  this Agreement and grant approval,  the Consultant will  submit  to  the City  itemized 
invoices for work progress in accordance with Attachment A, Section IV.  The City will pay the Consultant 
within 60 days of receipt of each monthly  invoice.   The City understands  that TDEM will not accept a 
reimbursement request for its payments to the Consultant until the City accumulates at least $2,500 in 
total reimbursable project expenses.

aflores
8. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Grant Works, Inc. to administer a Hazard Mitigation grant for Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Project.



 

 

Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Consultant must be authorized 
by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement as Attachment C.  In no 
event will this agreement be increased to an amount in excess of the Total Fee specified in Attachment B without 
prior approval by the local governing body.  
 
Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by counter‐signing and retaining one executed copy for your 
files and returning the fully executed original to Wendy Kirby, Hazard Mitigation Project Manager, to the address 
listed above.   
 
City of Palacios    GrantWorks, Inc. 
By:     By:  

Glen Smith, Mayor 
 
 

  Bruce J. Spitzengel, President 
 
May 13, 2016 

Date    Date 

 



 

Attachment A  Page 1 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017 

 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The Consultant will: 

Phase I ‐ Application Preparation and Submission 

1) Assist City of Palacios in the preparation of an application to the Texas Division of Emergency Management’s 

(TDEM) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for a Hazard Mitigation Grant within the guidelines and procedures 

established by TDEM. 

2) Assist City of Palacios in organizing and completing application requirements including required resolutions 

and if applicable interlocal agreements. 

3) Assist City of Palacios in responding to any requests by TDEM review staff for clarification of or supplemental 

application information. 

4) Submit the completed application to TDEM by assigned deadline date.  

 

Phase II – Grant Implementation, Contingent upon Award:  

1) Assist the City in the administration of Hazard Mitigation Grant requirements by:  

a. Establish record keeping system, including financial management records required by the Texas 

Division of Emergency Management (TDEM).  

b. Prepare and submit quarterly reports to TDEM. 

c. Furnish forms, policies, and procedures for implementation of the project. 

d. Provide technical assistance to City personnel who will be directly involved in the program for routine 

tasks according to TDEM guidelines.  

e. Travel to the City to attend initial Kick‐Off Meeting with the State, if applicable.  

f. Work with the City to ensure project completion within the required 24‐month time frame or extend 

Period of Performance, if applicable. 

g. Assist  the  City  in  the  preparation  and  submission  of  Project‐related  reimbursement  requests  to 
designated state project officer as needed, not to exceed one per quarter.  

h. Provide  assistance  to  the  City  in  preparation  of  Project‐related  contracts  to  ensure  they  are  in 
compliance with local, State and Federal Laws. 

i. Request bid packet, bid advertisement, bid tabulation, and contract prepared by engineer to review 
upon receipt for compliance with State and Federal requirements. 

j. Verify construction contractor and any subcontractors for eligibility. 
k. Attend (conduct if necessary) pre‐construction conference and prepare minutes. 
l. Request from engineer and upon receipt process and submit change orders to TDEM when necessary. 
m. Obtain a Certificate of Construction Completion and all necessary documentation and submit to 

TDEM. 

n. Preparation of close‐out monitoring documents and other grant requirements as necessary. 

2) Designate Wendy Kirby as the contact person assigned to coordinate its performance of obligations under 

this Agreement. 

  



 

Attachment A  Page 2 
 

II. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The City will:  

1) Provide full information to the Consultant regarding the City’s requirements for Consultant’s services under 

this Agreement.   

2) Furnish the Consultant with copies of Project‐related data and information in the City’s possession needed by 

the Consultant at the Consultant’s request.  

3) Designate the Mayor, as the authorized representative to act on the City’s behalf with respect to this 

Agreement.  The City will examine the documents and information submitted by the Consultant and promptly 

render responses within 10 business days to the Consultant on issues requiring a decision by the City.   

III. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

A. The City may direct the Consultant to perform services outside the scope of Basic Services described in 

Section I.  The Consultant will submit a written estimate of fees, based on our standard rates indicated in 

Attachment B, to the City and obtain the City’s authorization before initiating any additional services.   

 

B. Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Consultant must be 

authorized by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement.  

Compensation for additional services will be for those services provided by the Consultant in addition to the 

services specified in Section I, Scope of Services.    The approval of the City’s governing body is necessary for all 

additional services which exceeds the Total Fee shown in Attachment B.   



 

Attachment B  Page 1 
 

Attachment B – Basis of Compensation 
Hazard Mitigation Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017  

 
Contingent upon award, the City agrees to pay Consultant a base fee not to exceed five percent (5%) of the grant and match 

amounts.  City will be billed monthly for any tasks completed.  The City will pay the Consultant within in 60 calendar days 

upon  receipt  of  an  invoice  indicating  the  completed  tasks.    Listing  of  specific milestones  shall  not  be  construed  as  a 

representation or warranty, and Consultant makes no representations or warranties, that these milestones measure overall 

contract progress facilitated by the Consultant’s performance of the services, and any particular milestone will be achieved 

or  that any  specific Department or other  requirements ultimately will be met.   The  fee  schedule  shall be based upon 

identified contract milestones, as follows:  

 

Payments and invoicing shall be made in accordance with progress on the following tasks: 

Deliverables 

Application Preparation and Submission 

Documentation & Reporting:  
‐ Establish files, record keeping system, accounting system 
‐ Set up filing & documentation system 
‐ Quarterly reporting to the State  
‐ Reimbursement requests 
‐ Construction Documents 
‐ Close out  
‐ Delivery of audit file & PDF version of file 

Travel: 
‐ Mileage for site visits including but not limited to:  City Council, State Kickoff, Pre‐Construction Meeting, Construction Kickoff, 
Progression/ Percentage of Completion, Closeout. 
‐ Travel Drive Time  
‐ Meeting Time 
‐ Ads to Announce the Public Hearings in the Local Paper if applicable 

Additional Services but not limited to:  
Technical assistance & advice 
Coordination & liaison services 
Assistance with project modification if applicable 
Real property acquisition report assistance and advice if applicable 
 

 
Hourly Rates:  $75 (Seventy‐five dollars) 
 

Payment Terms:  No fees shall be due from City to Consultant if City does not receive a Hazard Mitigation Grant award to 

fund the Project, and in such event the Consultant’s obligation to the City shall be limited to the Phase I Scope of Services 

specified in Attachment A. In any event, total amount due to Consultant will not exceed the Total Fee amount shown above over 

the term of this Agreement as outlined in the Letter of Agreement unless services outside the scope of Basic Services are agreed upon 

by both parties and approved by the City’s governing body.  Quarterly reimbursement requests to the State will request 

reimbursement for 75% of all eligible costs. The State only accepts reimbursement requests greater than $2500. 



 

Attachment C  Page 1 
 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF CHANGE IN SERVICES   

 

PROJECT:    Grant Mitigation Application Preparation and Implementation in Connection with Hazard 

Mitigation Bethany Park Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017 

CONSULTANT:      GrantWorks, Inc.  

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER:   _________________________________________________________ 

ORGINAL CONTRACT DATE:      _________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZATION DATE:    _________________________________________________________ 

 

WORK TO BE ADDED TO OR DELETED FROM THE BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

PREVIOUS CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT:  

GRANTWORKS, INC.   

 

APPROVED BY:   

 

BY:  _____________________________________    DATE: ______________________ 

 

PRINTED NAME & TITLE:  ____________________________________________________________



 

Attachment D  Page 1 
 

 

Attachment D 
Terms and Conditions for Administrative Management Services Agreements 

Utilizing Federal Grant Funds 
 

1. Standards of Performance 
 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Consultant will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily 

exercised for similar projects by professional consulting firms who possess special expertise in the types of services 
involved under this Agreement. 

(b) Any provisions in this Agreement pertaining to the City's review, approval and/or acceptance of written materials 
prepared by the Consultant and/or its subconsultants in connection with this Agreement will not diminish the 
Consultant's responsibility for the materials. 

(c) The Consultant will perform all of its services in coordination with the City. The Consultant will advise the City of data 
and information the Consultant needs to perform its services and the City will assemble this data and information for 
the Consultant in a thorough and timely manner. 

(d) If the Federal Funding Accounting and Transparency Act applies to the Project the Consultant must obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System ("DUNS") Number and must register in the Central Contractor Registration ("CCR") 
System and prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, the Consultant will supply the City with both its DUNS 
and CCR registration numbers. 

 
2. Consultant's Records 

(a) All expense records of the Consultant related to this Agreement will be kept on a recognized accounting basis    
acceptable to the City and will be available to the City at mutually convenient times (applies only if the Consultant is 
to be reimbursed for expenses). 

(b) The City, its auditors and federal and state agencies that have monitoring or auditing responsibilities for this 
Agreement will have access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Consultant which are directly 
pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, copying and transcriptions. 

(c) The Consultant will furnish to the City at such time and in such form as the City may require, financial statements 
including audited financial statements, records, reports, data and information, as the 
City may request pertaining to the matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
3. Ownership and Use of Documents 

 
(a) All documents prepared by the Consultant in connection with this Agreement are the property of the City. 
(b) The Consultant will deliver its records and supporting documentation relating to this Agreement to the City upon 

close‐out of the project and the City shall thenceforth be responsible for the maintenance of such records and 
documents. 

 
4. Patent Fees and Royalties 

 

(a) If applicable, the Consultant will pay all license fees, royalties, and other costs incident to the use of any invention, 
design, process, product or device subject to a patent right or copyright held by others in performing the work or in 
the completed project. 

(b) The Consultant will hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City, its officers, agents and employees from and against 
all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney's and expert witness fees, arising out of any claim of 
infringement of a patent right or copyright in the performance of the work or the incorporation in the work of any 
invention, design, process, product or device. 

 



 

Attachment D  Page 2 
 

5. Consultant as Independent Contractor 
 
It is expressly agreed that the Consultant is an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, partner or joint 
venture with the City. The Consultant will not pledge or attempt to pledge the credit of the City. 
 
6. Designation of Consultant's Contact Person 
 
The Consultant agrees to designate in writing a single contact person assigned to coordinate the Consultant's 
performance of obligations under this Agreement. Any changes to this designation must be made by the Consultant in 
writing to the City. 
 
7. Term; Termination of Agreement 

 

(a) The term of this Agreement begins upon the date of its execution by the City, and will end upon the Consultant's 
completion, and the City's acceptance, of all services described in this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 15 calendar days prior written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 

(c) This Agreement may be terminated at will by the either party upon at least 30 calendar days prior written notice to 
the other party. 

(d) In the event of termination as provided in this Section, the Consultant will be compensated for all services performed 
to the termination date which are deemed by the City to be in accordance with this Agreement. This amount will be 
paid by the City upon the Consultant's delivering to the City all information and materials developed or accumulated 
by the Consultant in performing the services described in this Agreement, whether completed or in progress. The 
expense of the reproduction of these items will be borne by the City. 

 
8. Insurance and Indemnity 

 

(a) The Consultant will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City and its employees, agents, officers and servants 
from any and all lawsuits, claims, demands and causes of action of any kind arising from the negligent or intentional 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant, its officers, employees or agents. This will include, but not be 
limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs, reasonable legal fees, and all other expenses 
incurred by the City arising in favor of any party, including the amounts of any damages or awards resulting from 
claims, demands and causes of action for personal injuries, death or damages to property, alleged or actual 
infringement of patents, copyrights and trademarks and without limitation by enumeration all other claims, demands 
or causes of action of every character occurring, resulting or arising from any negligent or intentional wrongful act, 
error or omission of the Consultant and/or its agents and/or employees. This obligation by the Consultant will not be 
limited by reason of the specification of any particular insurance coverage required under the Agreement. 

(b) The Consultant will procure and maintain at its expense insurance with insurance companies authorized to do 
business in the State of Texas, covering all operations under this Agreement, whether performed by the Consultant or 
its agents, subcontractors or employees. Before commencing the work the Consultant will furnish to the City a 
certificate or certificates in a form satisfactory to the City, showing that the Consultant has complied with this 
paragraph. All certificates will provide that the policies will not be canceled until at least 30 calendar days written 
notice has been given to the City. Commercial general liability and motor vehicle insurance will be written with the 
City as an additional insured and will be endorsed to provide a waiver of the carrier's right of subrogation against the 
City.  
The kinds and amounts of insurance required are as follows:  
Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Act of the State 
of Texas. Liability Insurance: (1) Commercial general liability insurance with a combined single limit of $500,000 for 
each occurrence and $500,000 in the aggregate and (2) Motor Vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than 



 

Attachment D  Page 3 
 

$250,000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000 on account of any one accident and in an amount of not less than 
$250,000 for property damage. 

(c) The stated limits of insurance required by this Paragraph are minimum only‐‐they do not limit the Consultant's 
indemnity obligation, and it will be the Consultant's responsibility to determine what limits are adequate. These limits 
may be met by basic policy limits or any combination of basic limits and umbrella limits. The City's acceptance of 
certificates of insurance that do not comply with these requirements in any respect does not release the Consultant 
from compliance with these requirements. 

 
9. Copeland Anti‐Kickback Act Compliance 
 
If applicable, the Consultant will comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 (the Copeland Act). The "Anti‐Kickback" 
section of the Act precludes a contractor or subcontractor from inducing an employee –in any manner ‐‐ to give up any 
part of his/her compensation to which he/she is entitled under his/her contract of employment. 
 
10. Compliance with Laws, Rules & Regulations & Grant Requirements 

 

(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Consultant will comply with all local, state and federal laws. 
Specifically, funding for the Project has been made available with Federal funds. The Consultant will comply with all of 
the applicable federal regulations related to the application, acceptance and use of federal funds for the Project. 

(b) The Consultant shall comply with all requirements of the Hazard Mitigation Grant awarded to the City. To the extent 
any such requirement govern the operation of this Agreement, all such applicable requirements of the Grant are 
incorporated into this Agreement whether or not attached hereto. 

 
11. No Waiver of lmmunity 
 
The City's execution of and performance under this Agreement will not act as a waiver by the City of any immunity from 
suit or liability to which it is entitled under applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the City, in executing and 
performing this Agreement, is a governmental entity acting in a governmental capacity. 
 
12. Remedies; No Waiver 
 
In the event of a default or breach of this Agreement by the Consultant, the City reserves the right to choose among the 
remedies for the default or breach available to the City. These remedies may be used in conjunction with one another or 
separately, and together with any other statutory or common law remedies available to the City. Any failure by the City to 
enforce this Agreement with respect to one or more defaults by the Consultant will not waive the City's ability to enforce 
the Agreement after that time. 
 
13. Certification of Eligibility 
 
By submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals, the Consultant certifies that at the time of submission, 
he/she/it is not on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors. 
(a) In the event of placement on this list between the time of bind/proposal submission and time of contract award, the 

bidder/proposer will immediately notify the City. 
(b) Consultant certifies that its subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in any state or federal program. 
(c) Placement of Consultant on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors, false 

certification, or failure to notify City as required may result in City's termination of this Contract for default. 
 
14. Non‐Collusion Certification 
 



 

Attachment D  Page 4 
 

The consultant certifies that, if a proposal was provided that resulted in a contract, that proposal was made without 
collusion with any other person, firm or corporation. 
 
15. Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

(a) This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas Exclusive venue for any dispute arising under this 
Agreement City of Palacios, Texas where this agreement is to be performed. 

(b) As to all acts or failures to act by either party to this Agreement, any applicable statute of limitations will commence 
to run and any alleged cause of action will be deemed to have accrued when the party commencing the cause of 
action knew or should have known of the existence of the subject act or failure to act. 

(c) The Consultant agrees not to use funds received by it under the terms of this Agreement for any partisan political 
activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

(d) The Consultant hereby affirms that Consultant and Consultant's firm have not made or agreed to make any valuable 
gift whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or promise to any person or any of his/her immediate family, having 
the duty to recommend, the right to vote upon, or any other direct influence on the selection of consultants to 
provide professional services to the City within the two years preceding the execution of this Agreement. A campaign 
contribution, as defined by the Texas Election Code will not be considered as a valuable gift for the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

(e) In performing the services required under this Agreement, the Consultant will not discriminate against any person on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. The Consultant agrees not to engage in 
employment practices which have the purpose or effect of discriminating against employees because of race, color, 
sex, religion, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. A breach of this covenant may be regarded as a default by the 
Consultant of the Agreement. 

(f) The Consultant will comply with Executive Order 11246 of 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as 
amended by Executive Order #11375 of 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR 
Chapter 60). 

(g) All references in this Agreement to any particular gender are for convenience only and will be construed and 
interpreted to be of the appropriate gender. The term "will" is mandatory in this Agreement.  

(h) Should any provision in this Agreement be found or deemed to be invalid, this Agreement will be construed as not 
containing the provision and all other provisions which are otherwise lawful will remain in full force and effect, and to 
this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 

(i) All services provided pursuant to this Agreement are for the exclusive use and benefit of the City and the Agreement 
will not give rise to any rights in third parties. 

(j) The City is governed by the Texas Public Information Act (the "Act"), Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. This 
Agreement and all written information generated under this agreement may be subject to release under the Act. The 
Consultant will not make any reports, information, data, etc. generated under this Agreement available to any 
individual or organization without the written approval of the City. 

(k) In the event that the performance by either the City or the Consultant of any of its obligations under this Agreement 
is interrupted or delayed by events outside of their control such as acts of God, war, riot or civil commotion, then the 
party is excused from such performance for the period of time reasonably necessary to remedy the effects of such 
events. 

(l) The City and the Consultant, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives of such other party with respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The City and the Consultant may 
not assign, sublet or transfer any interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other. The Consultant 
will notify the City, in writing, of any change in its partnership/ownership within 30 calendar days of such change. 

(m) The Agreement including any appendices and referenced attachments represents the entire and integrated 
Agreement between the City and the Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements either written or oral. In the event of a dispute between the parties regarding the intent of this 
Agreement, both parties agree that this Agreement will be construed in a manner consistent with the City's Request 



 

Attachment D  Page 5 
 

for Proposals, the Consultant's Proposal Response, and the public record of the City Council's approval of the 
Agreement as applicable. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument which must be signed by both 
the City and the Consultant. Any such authorization of change in services or amendment must be approved by the 
City's governing body unless the compensation for which does not exceed $50,000.00. 

(n) Any exhibits and/or attachments attached to this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as 
though included verbatim herein. In the event of any conflict between these Terms and Conditions and the provisions 
of any exhibit or attachment to this Agreement, these Terms and Conditions will govern and control. 

 

 



         
 
 
 
 

 

 

Bruce Spitzengel, President 
Wendy Kirby, CFM 

Hazard Mitigation Project Manager 
2201 Northland Drive ● Austin, Texas  78756 
P (512) 420‐0303 x337 ● F (800) 407‐5532 

wendy@grantworks.net ● www. grantworks.net 

Planning, Housing, and Community  
Development Services for Texas Since 1979 

May 13, 2016 
 
Glen Smith 
Mayor, City of Palacios  
311 Henderson 
Palacios, TX 77465 
 
Re:  LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 
Dear Mayor Smith: 
 
Thank  you  for  choosing GrantWorks  to  administer  your Hazard Mitigation  Perryman  Avenue Outfall 
Drainage project.  The first order of business is to execute our Letter of Agreement. 
 
This  letter shall serve as an agreement between GrantWorks,  Inc.  (“Consultant”), 2201 Northland Dr., 
Austin, TX 78756 and the City of Palacios (“City”), 311 Henderson, Palacios, TX 77465 for the provision of 
Hazard Mitigation  Application  Preparation  and  Hazard Mitigation  Grant Management  Services  (the 
“Services”)  in connection with the City’s 2016/2017 Hazard Mitigation Grant Project (the “Project”) as 
administered by the Texas Division of Emergency Management (TDEM).  The Consultant will perform its 
services to the City as described in the Scope of Work attached as Attachment A and in accordance with 
the terms and conditions in Attachment D. 
 
The  City  agrees  to  pay  the  Consultant  a  not‐to‐exceed  Total  Fee  specified  in  Attachment  B  for  the 
satisfactory performance of basic services in accordance with the provisions of Attachment A.  Since the 
Consultant’s compensation is a fixed fee for basic services, including minor deviations described in this 
Agreement, compensation to the Consultant for additional services will only be for substantial deviations 
from  the  scope of  services defined  in  this Agreement.    Substantial deviations would be billed at our 
standard  rates as  indicated  in  the Base of Compensation  section.   The City  is under no obligation  to 
compensate  the  Consultant  for  additional  services  performed  without  the  City’s  prior  approval.  
Reimbursable expenses, including expenses for reproduction of documents, auto travel mileage, lodging, 
delivery charges and freight are included in the consultant’s basic services compensation.  
 
After  the date of  this Agreement and grant approval,  the Consultant will  submit  to  the City  itemized 
invoices for work progress in accordance with Attachment A, Section IV.  The City will pay the Consultant 
within 60 days of receipt of each monthly  invoice.   The City understands  that TDEM will not accept a 
reimbursement request for its payments to the Consultant until the City accumulates at least $2,500 in 
total reimbursable project expenses.

aflores
9. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Grant Works, Inc. to administer a Hazard Mitigation grant for Perryman Outfall Drainage Project.



 

 

Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Consultant must be authorized 
by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement as Attachment C.  In no 
event will this agreement be increased to an amount in excess of the Total Fee specified in Attachment B without 
prior approval by the local governing body.  
 
Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by counter‐signing and retaining one executed copy for your 
files and returning the fully executed original to Wendy Kirby, Hazard Mitigation Project Manager, to the address 
listed above.   
 
City of Palacios    GrantWorks, Inc. 
By:     By:  

Glen Smith, Mayor 
 
 

  Bruce J. Spitzengel, President 
 
May 13, 2016 

Date    Date 

 



 

Attachment A  Page 1 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Perryman Avenue Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017 

 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The Consultant will: 

Phase I ‐ Application Preparation and Submission 

1) Assist City of Palacios in the preparation of an application to the Texas Division of Emergency Management’s 

(TDEM) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for a Hazard Mitigation Grant within the guidelines and procedures 

established by TDEM. 

2) Assist City of Palacios in organizing and completing application requirements including required resolutions 

and if applicable interlocal agreements. 

3) Assist City of Palacios in responding to any requests by TDEM review staff for clarification of or supplemental 

application information. 

4) Submit the completed application to TDEM by assigned deadline date.  

 

Phase II – Grant Implementation, Contingent upon Award:  

1) Assist the City in the administration of Hazard Mitigation Grant requirements by:  

a. Establish record keeping system, including financial management records required by the Texas 

Division of Emergency Management (TDEM).  

b. Prepare and submit quarterly reports to TDEM. 

c. Furnish forms, policies, and procedures for implementation of the project. 

d. Provide technical assistance to City personnel who will be directly involved in the program for routine 

tasks according to TDEM guidelines.  

e. Travel to the City to attend initial Kick‐Off Meeting with the State, if applicable.  

f. Work with the City to ensure project completion within the required 24‐month time frame or extend 

Period of Performance, if applicable. 

g. Assist  the  City  in  the  preparation  and  submission  of  Project‐related  reimbursement  requests  to 
designated state project officer as needed, not to exceed one per quarter.  

h. Provide  assistance  to  the  City  in  preparation  of  Project‐related  contracts  to  ensure  they  are  in 
compliance with local, State and Federal Laws. 

i. Request bid packet, bid advertisement, bid tabulation, and contract prepared by engineer to review 
upon receipt for compliance with State and Federal requirements. 

j. Verify construction contractor and any subcontractors for eligibility. 
k. Attend (conduct if necessary) pre‐construction conference and prepare minutes. 
l. Request from engineer and upon receipt process and submit change orders to TDEM when necessary. 
m. Obtain a Certificate of Construction Completion and all necessary documentation and submit to 

TDEM. 

n. Preparation of close‐out monitoring documents and other grant requirements as necessary. 

2) Designate Wendy Kirby as the contact person assigned to coordinate its performance of obligations under 

this Agreement. 

  



 

Attachment A  Page 2 
 

II. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The City will:  

1) Provide full information to the Consultant regarding the City’s requirements for Consultant’s services under 

this Agreement.   

2) Furnish the Consultant with copies of Project‐related data and information in the City’s possession needed by 

the Consultant at the Consultant’s request.  

3) Designate the Mayor, as the authorized representative to act on the City’s behalf with respect to this 

Agreement.  The City will examine the documents and information submitted by the Consultant and promptly 

render responses within 10 business days to the Consultant on issues requiring a decision by the City.   

III. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

A. The City may direct the Consultant to perform services outside the scope of Basic Services described in 

Section I.  The Consultant will submit a written estimate of fees, based on our standard rates indicated in 

Attachment B, to the City and obtain the City’s authorization before initiating any additional services.   

 

B. Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Consultant must be 

authorized by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement.  

Compensation for additional services will be for those services provided by the Consultant in addition to the 

services specified in Section I, Scope of Services.    The approval of the City’s governing body is necessary for all 

additional services which exceeds the Total Fee shown in Attachment B.   



 

Attachment B  Page 1 
 

Attachment B – Basis of Compensation 
Hazard Mitigation Perryman Avenue Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017  

 
Contingent upon award, the City agrees to pay Consultant a base fee not to exceed five percent (5%) of the grant and match 

amounts.  City will be billed monthly for any tasks completed.  The City will pay the Consultant within in 60 calendar days 

upon  receipt  of  an  invoice  indicating  the  completed  tasks.    Listing  of  specific milestones  shall  not  be  construed  as  a 

representation or warranty, and Consultant makes no representations or warranties, that these milestones measure overall 

contract progress facilitated by the Consultant’s performance of the services, and any particular milestone will be achieved 

or  that any  specific Department or other  requirements ultimately will be met.   The  fee  schedule  shall be based upon 

identified contract milestones, as follows:  

 

Payments and invoicing shall be made in accordance with progress on the following tasks: 

Deliverables 

Application Preparation and Submission 

Documentation & Reporting:  
‐ Establish files, record keeping system, accounting system 
‐ Set up filing & documentation system 
‐ Quarterly reporting to the State  
‐ Reimbursement requests 
‐ Construction Documents 
‐ Close out  
‐ Delivery of audit file & PDF version of file 

Travel: 
‐ Mileage for site visits including but not limited to:  City Council, State Kickoff, Pre‐Construction Meeting, Construction Kickoff, 
Progression/ Percentage of Completion, Closeout. 
‐ Travel Drive Time  
‐ Meeting Time 
‐ Ads to Announce the Public Hearings in the Local Paper if applicable 

Additional Services but not limited to:  
Technical assistance & advice 
Coordination & liaison services 
Assistance with project modification if applicable 
Real property acquisition report assistance and advice if applicable 
 

 
Hourly Rates:  $75 (Seventy‐five dollars) 
 

Payment Terms:  No fees shall be due from City to Consultant if City does not receive a Hazard Mitigation Grant award to 

fund the Project, and in such event the Consultant’s obligation to the City shall be limited to the Phase I Scope of Services 

specified in Attachment A. In any event, total amount due to Consultant will not exceed the Total Fee amount shown above over 

the term of this Agreement as outlined in the Letter of Agreement unless services outside the scope of Basic Services are agreed upon 

by both parties and approved by the City’s governing body.  Quarterly reimbursement requests to the State will request 

reimbursement for 75% of all eligible costs. The State only accepts reimbursement requests greater than $2500. 



 

Attachment C  Page 1 
 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF CHANGE IN SERVICES   

 

PROJECT:    Grant Mitigation Application Preparation and Implementation in Connection with Hazard 

Mitigation Perryman Avenue Outfall Drainage Project 2016/2017 

CONSULTANT:      GrantWorks, Inc.  

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER:   _________________________________________________________ 

ORGINAL CONTRACT DATE:      _________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZATION DATE:    _________________________________________________________ 

 

WORK TO BE ADDED TO OR DELETED FROM THE BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

PREVIOUS CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT:  

GRANTWORKS, INC.   

 

APPROVED BY:   

 

BY:  _____________________________________    DATE: ______________________ 

 

PRINTED NAME & TITLE:  ____________________________________________________________



 

Attachment D  Page 1 
 

 

Attachment D 
Terms and Conditions for Administrative Management Services Agreements 

Utilizing Federal Grant Funds 
 

1. Standards of Performance 
 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Consultant will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily 

exercised for similar projects by professional consulting firms who possess special expertise in the types of services 
involved under this Agreement. 

(b) Any provisions in this Agreement pertaining to the City's review, approval and/or acceptance of written materials 
prepared by the Consultant and/or its subconsultants in connection with this Agreement will not diminish the 
Consultant's responsibility for the materials. 

(c) The Consultant will perform all of its services in coordination with the City. The Consultant will advise the City of data 
and information the Consultant needs to perform its services and the City will assemble this data and information for 
the Consultant in a thorough and timely manner. 

(d) If the Federal Funding Accounting and Transparency Act applies to the Project the Consultant must obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System ("DUNS") Number and must register in the Central Contractor Registration ("CCR") 
System and prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, the Consultant will supply the City with both its DUNS 
and CCR registration numbers. 

 
2. Consultant's Records 

(a) All expense records of the Consultant related to this Agreement will be kept on a recognized accounting basis    
acceptable to the City and will be available to the City at mutually convenient times (applies only if the Consultant is 
to be reimbursed for expenses). 

(b) The City, its auditors and federal and state agencies that have monitoring or auditing responsibilities for this 
Agreement will have access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Consultant which are directly 
pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, copying and transcriptions. 

(c) The Consultant will furnish to the City at such time and in such form as the City may require, financial statements 
including audited financial statements, records, reports, data and information, as the 
City may request pertaining to the matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
3. Ownership and Use of Documents 

 
(a) All documents prepared by the Consultant in connection with this Agreement are the property of the City. 
(b) The Consultant will deliver its records and supporting documentation relating to this Agreement to the City upon 

close‐out of the project and the City shall thenceforth be responsible for the maintenance of such records and 
documents. 

 
4. Patent Fees and Royalties 

 

(a) If applicable, the Consultant will pay all license fees, royalties, and other costs incident to the use of any invention, 
design, process, product or device subject to a patent right or copyright held by others in performing the work or in 
the completed project. 

(b) The Consultant will hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City, its officers, agents and employees from and against 
all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney's and expert witness fees, arising out of any claim of 
infringement of a patent right or copyright in the performance of the work or the incorporation in the work of any 
invention, design, process, product or device. 

 



 

Attachment D  Page 2 
 

5. Consultant as Independent Contractor 
 
It is expressly agreed that the Consultant is an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, partner or joint 
venture with the City. The Consultant will not pledge or attempt to pledge the credit of the City. 
 
6. Designation of Consultant's Contact Person 
 
The Consultant agrees to designate in writing a single contact person assigned to coordinate the Consultant's 
performance of obligations under this Agreement. Any changes to this designation must be made by the Consultant in 
writing to the City. 
 
7. Term; Termination of Agreement 

 

(a) The term of this Agreement begins upon the date of its execution by the City, and will end upon the Consultant's 
completion, and the City's acceptance, of all services described in this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 15 calendar days prior written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 

(c) This Agreement may be terminated at will by the either party upon at least 30 calendar days prior written notice to 
the other party. 

(d) In the event of termination as provided in this Section, the Consultant will be compensated for all services performed 
to the termination date which are deemed by the City to be in accordance with this Agreement. This amount will be 
paid by the City upon the Consultant's delivering to the City all information and materials developed or accumulated 
by the Consultant in performing the services described in this Agreement, whether completed or in progress. The 
expense of the reproduction of these items will be borne by the City. 

 
8. Insurance and Indemnity 

 

(a) The Consultant will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City and its employees, agents, officers and servants 
from any and all lawsuits, claims, demands and causes of action of any kind arising from the negligent or intentional 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant, its officers, employees or agents. This will include, but not be 
limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs, reasonable legal fees, and all other expenses 
incurred by the City arising in favor of any party, including the amounts of any damages or awards resulting from 
claims, demands and causes of action for personal injuries, death or damages to property, alleged or actual 
infringement of patents, copyrights and trademarks and without limitation by enumeration all other claims, demands 
or causes of action of every character occurring, resulting or arising from any negligent or intentional wrongful act, 
error or omission of the Consultant and/or its agents and/or employees. This obligation by the Consultant will not be 
limited by reason of the specification of any particular insurance coverage required under the Agreement. 

(b) The Consultant will procure and maintain at its expense insurance with insurance companies authorized to do 
business in the State of Texas, covering all operations under this Agreement, whether performed by the Consultant or 
its agents, subcontractors or employees. Before commencing the work the Consultant will furnish to the City a 
certificate or certificates in a form satisfactory to the City, showing that the Consultant has complied with this 
paragraph. All certificates will provide that the policies will not be canceled until at least 30 calendar days written 
notice has been given to the City. Commercial general liability and motor vehicle insurance will be written with the 
City as an additional insured and will be endorsed to provide a waiver of the carrier's right of subrogation against the 
City.  
The kinds and amounts of insurance required are as follows:  
Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Act of the State 
of Texas. Liability Insurance: (1) Commercial general liability insurance with a combined single limit of $500,000 for 
each occurrence and $500,000 in the aggregate and (2) Motor Vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than 



 

Attachment D  Page 3 
 

$250,000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000 on account of any one accident and in an amount of not less than 
$250,000 for property damage. 

(c) The stated limits of insurance required by this Paragraph are minimum only‐‐they do not limit the Consultant's 
indemnity obligation, and it will be the Consultant's responsibility to determine what limits are adequate. These limits 
may be met by basic policy limits or any combination of basic limits and umbrella limits. The City's acceptance of 
certificates of insurance that do not comply with these requirements in any respect does not release the Consultant 
from compliance with these requirements. 

 
9. Copeland Anti‐Kickback Act Compliance 
 
If applicable, the Consultant will comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 (the Copeland Act). The "Anti‐Kickback" 
section of the Act precludes a contractor or subcontractor from inducing an employee –in any manner ‐‐ to give up any 
part of his/her compensation to which he/she is entitled under his/her contract of employment. 
 
10. Compliance with Laws, Rules & Regulations & Grant Requirements 

 

(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Consultant will comply with all local, state and federal laws. 
Specifically, funding for the Project has been made available with Federal funds. The Consultant will comply with all of 
the applicable federal regulations related to the application, acceptance and use of federal funds for the Project. 

(b) The Consultant shall comply with all requirements of the Hazard Mitigation Grant awarded to the City. To the extent 
any such requirement govern the operation of this Agreement, all such applicable requirements of the Grant are 
incorporated into this Agreement whether or not attached hereto. 

 
11. No Waiver of lmmunity 
 
The City's execution of and performance under this Agreement will not act as a waiver by the City of any immunity from 
suit or liability to which it is entitled under applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the City, in executing and 
performing this Agreement, is a governmental entity acting in a governmental capacity. 
 
12. Remedies; No Waiver 
 
In the event of a default or breach of this Agreement by the Consultant, the City reserves the right to choose among the 
remedies for the default or breach available to the City. These remedies may be used in conjunction with one another or 
separately, and together with any other statutory or common law remedies available to the City. Any failure by the City to 
enforce this Agreement with respect to one or more defaults by the Consultant will not waive the City's ability to enforce 
the Agreement after that time. 
 
13. Certification of Eligibility 
 
By submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals, the Consultant certifies that at the time of submission, 
he/she/it is not on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors. 
(a) In the event of placement on this list between the time of bind/proposal submission and time of contract award, the 

bidder/proposer will immediately notify the City. 
(b) Consultant certifies that its subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in any state or federal program. 
(c) Placement of Consultant on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors, false 

certification, or failure to notify City as required may result in City's termination of this Contract for default. 
 
14. Non‐Collusion Certification 
 



 

Attachment D  Page 4 
 

The consultant certifies that, if a proposal was provided that resulted in a contract, that proposal was made without 
collusion with any other person, firm or corporation. 
 
15. Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

(a) This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas Exclusive venue for any dispute arising under this 
Agreement City of Palacios, Texas where this agreement is to be performed. 

(b) As to all acts or failures to act by either party to this Agreement, any applicable statute of limitations will commence 
to run and any alleged cause of action will be deemed to have accrued when the party commencing the cause of 
action knew or should have known of the existence of the subject act or failure to act. 

(c) The Consultant agrees not to use funds received by it under the terms of this Agreement for any partisan political 
activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

(d) The Consultant hereby affirms that Consultant and Consultant's firm have not made or agreed to make any valuable 
gift whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or promise to any person or any of his/her immediate family, having 
the duty to recommend, the right to vote upon, or any other direct influence on the selection of consultants to 
provide professional services to the City within the two years preceding the execution of this Agreement. A campaign 
contribution, as defined by the Texas Election Code will not be considered as a valuable gift for the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

(e) In performing the services required under this Agreement, the Consultant will not discriminate against any person on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. The Consultant agrees not to engage in 
employment practices which have the purpose or effect of discriminating against employees because of race, color, 
sex, religion, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. A breach of this covenant may be regarded as a default by the 
Consultant of the Agreement. 

(f) The Consultant will comply with Executive Order 11246 of 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as 
amended by Executive Order #11375 of 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR 
Chapter 60). 

(g) All references in this Agreement to any particular gender are for convenience only and will be construed and 
interpreted to be of the appropriate gender. The term "will" is mandatory in this Agreement.  

(h) Should any provision in this Agreement be found or deemed to be invalid, this Agreement will be construed as not 
containing the provision and all other provisions which are otherwise lawful will remain in full force and effect, and to 
this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 

(i) All services provided pursuant to this Agreement are for the exclusive use and benefit of the City and the Agreement 
will not give rise to any rights in third parties. 

(j) The City is governed by the Texas Public Information Act (the "Act"), Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. This 
Agreement and all written information generated under this agreement may be subject to release under the Act. The 
Consultant will not make any reports, information, data, etc. generated under this Agreement available to any 
individual or organization without the written approval of the City. 

(k) In the event that the performance by either the City or the Consultant of any of its obligations under this Agreement 
is interrupted or delayed by events outside of their control such as acts of God, war, riot or civil commotion, then the 
party is excused from such performance for the period of time reasonably necessary to remedy the effects of such 
events. 

(l) The City and the Consultant, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives of such other party with respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The City and the Consultant may 
not assign, sublet or transfer any interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other. The Consultant 
will notify the City, in writing, of any change in its partnership/ownership within 30 calendar days of such change. 

(m) The Agreement including any appendices and referenced attachments represents the entire and integrated 
Agreement between the City and the Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements either written or oral. In the event of a dispute between the parties regarding the intent of this 
Agreement, both parties agree that this Agreement will be construed in a manner consistent with the City's Request 



 

Attachment D  Page 5 
 

for Proposals, the Consultant's Proposal Response, and the public record of the City Council's approval of the 
Agreement as applicable. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument which must be signed by both 
the City and the Consultant. Any such authorization of change in services or amendment must be approved by the 
City's governing body unless the compensation for which does not exceed $50,000.00. 

(n) Any exhibits and/or attachments attached to this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as 
though included verbatim herein. In the event of any conflict between these Terms and Conditions and the provisions 
of any exhibit or attachment to this Agreement, these Terms and Conditions will govern and control. 

 

 



         
 
 
 
 

 

 

Bruce Spitzengel, President 
Wendy Kirby, CFM 

Hazard Mitigation Project Manager 
2201 Northland Drive ● Austin, Texas  78756 
P (512) 420‐0303 x337 ● F (800) 407‐5532 

wendy@grantworks.net ● www. grantworks.net 

Planning, Housing, and Community  
Development Services for Texas Since 1979 

May 13, 2016 
 
Glen Smith 
Mayor, City of Palacios 
311 Henderson 
Palacios, TX 77465 
 
Re:  LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 
Dear Mayor Smith: 
 
Thank you for choosing GrantWorks to administer your Hazard Mitigation Foley Addition Drainage project.  
The first order of business is to execute our Letter of Agreement. 
 
This  letter shall serve as an agreement between GrantWorks,  Inc.  (“Consultant”), 2201 Northland Dr., 
Austin, TX 78756 and the City of Palacios (“City”), 311 Henderson, Palacios, TX 77465 for the provision of 
Hazard Mitigation  Application  Preparation  and  Hazard Mitigation  Grant Management  Services  (the 
“Services”)  in connection with the City’s 2016/2017 Hazard Mitigation Grant Project (the “Project”) as 
administered by the Texas Division of Emergency Management (TDEM).  The Consultant will perform its 
services to the City as described in the Scope of Work attached as Attachment A and in accordance with 
the terms and conditions in Attachment D. 
 
The  City  agrees  to  pay  the  Consultant  a  not‐to‐exceed  Total  Fee  specified  in  Attachment  B  for  the 
satisfactory performance of basic services in accordance with the provisions of Attachment A.  Since the 
Consultant’s compensation is a fixed fee for basic services, including minor deviations described in this 
Agreement, compensation to the Consultant for additional services will only be for substantial deviations 
from  the  scope of  services defined  in  this Agreement.    Substantial deviations would be billed at our 
standard  rates as  indicated  in  the Base of Compensation  section.   The City  is under no obligation  to 
compensate  the  Consultant  for  additional  services  performed  without  the  City’s  prior  approval.  
Reimbursable expenses, including expenses for reproduction of documents, auto travel mileage, lodging, 
delivery charges and freight are included in the consultant’s basic services compensation.  
 
After  the date of  this Agreement and grant approval,  the Consultant will  submit  to  the City  itemized 
invoices for work progress in accordance with Attachment A, Section IV.  The City will pay the Consultant 
within 60 days of receipt of each monthly  invoice.   The City understands  that TDEM will not accept a 
reimbursement request for its payments to the Consultant until the City accumulates at least $2,500 in 
total reimbursable project expenses.

aflores
10. Discuss and consider approving an agreement with Grant Works, Inc. to administer a Hazard Mitigation grant for Foley Addition Drainage Project.



 

 

Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Consultant must be authorized 
by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement as Attachment C.  In no 
event will this agreement be increased to an amount in excess of the Total Fee specified in Attachment B without 
prior approval by the local governing body.  
 
Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by counter‐signing and retaining one executed copy for your 
files and returning the fully executed original to Wendy Kirby, Hazard Mitigation Project Manager, to the address 
listed above.   
 
City of Palacios    GrantWorks, Inc. 
By:     By:  

Glen Smith, Mayor 
 
 

  Bruce J. Spitzengel, President 
 
May 13, 2016 

Date    Date 

 



 

Attachment A  Page 1 
 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Foley Addition Drainage Project 2016/2017 

 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The Consultant will: 

Phase I ‐ Application Preparation and Submission 

1) Assist City of Palacios in the preparation of an application to the Texas Division of Emergency Management’s 

(TDEM) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for a Hazard Mitigation Grant within the guidelines and procedures 

established by TDEM. 

2) Assist City of Palacios in organizing and completing application requirements including required resolutions 

and if applicable interlocal agreements. 

3) Assist City of Palacios in responding to any requests by TDEM review staff for clarification of or supplemental 

application information. 

4) Submit the completed application to TDEM by assigned deadline date.  

 

Phase II – Grant Implementation, Contingent upon Award:  

1) Assist the City in the administration of Hazard Mitigation Grant requirements by:  

a. Establish record keeping system, including financial management records required by the Texas 

Division of Emergency Management (TDEM).  

b. Prepare and submit quarterly reports to TDEM. 

c. Furnish forms, policies, and procedures for implementation of the project. 

d. Provide technical assistance to City personnel who will be directly involved in the program for routine 

tasks according to TDEM guidelines.  

e. Travel to the City to attend initial Kick‐Off Meeting with the State, if applicable.  

f. Work with the City to ensure project completion within the required 24‐month time frame or extend 

Period of Performance, if applicable. 

g. Assist  the  City  in  the  preparation  and  submission  of  Project‐related  reimbursement  requests  to 
designated state project officer as needed, not to exceed one per quarter.  

h. Provide  assistance  to  the  City  in  preparation  of  Project‐related  contracts  to  ensure  they  are  in 
compliance with local, State and Federal Laws. 

i. Request bid packet, bid advertisement, bid tabulation, and contract prepared by engineer to review 
upon receipt for compliance with State and Federal requirements. 

j. Verify construction contractor and any subcontractors for eligibility. 
k. Attend (conduct if necessary) pre‐construction conference and prepare minutes. 
l. Request from engineer and upon receipt process and submit change orders to TDEM when necessary. 
m. Obtain a Certificate of Construction Completion and all necessary documentation and submit to 

TDEM. 

n. Preparation of close‐out monitoring documents and other grant requirements as necessary. 

2) Designate Wendy Kirby as the contact person assigned to coordinate its performance of obligations under 

this Agreement. 

  



 

Attachment A  Page 2 
 

II. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The City will:  

1) Provide full information to the Consultant regarding the City’s requirements for Consultant’s services under 

this Agreement.   

2) Furnish the Consultant with copies of Project‐related data and information in the City’s possession needed by 

the Consultant at the Consultant’s request.  

3) Designate the Mayor, as the authorized representative to act on the City’s behalf with respect to this 

Agreement.  The City will examine the documents and information submitted by the Consultant and promptly 

render responses within 10 business days to the Consultant on issues requiring a decision by the City.   

III. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

A. The City may direct the Consultant to perform services outside the scope of Basic Services described in 

Section I.  The Consultant will submit a written estimate of fees, based on our standard rates indicated in 

Attachment B, to the City and obtain the City’s authorization before initiating any additional services.   

 

B. Each material change (deletion or addition) in the services to be provided by the Consultant must be 

authorized by the City on the Authorization of Change in Services form attached to this Agreement.  

Compensation for additional services will be for those services provided by the Consultant in addition to the 

services specified in Section I, Scope of Services.    The approval of the City’s governing body is necessary for all 

additional services which exceeds the Total Fee shown in Attachment B.   



 

Attachment B  Page 1 
 

Attachment B – Basis of Compensation 
Hazard Mitigation Foley Addition Drainage Project 2016/2017  

 
Contingent upon award, the City agrees to pay Consultant a base fee not to exceed five percent (5%) of the grant and match 

amounts.  City will be billed monthly for any tasks completed.  The City will pay the Consultant within in 60 calendar days 

upon  receipt  of  an  invoice  indicating  the  completed  tasks.    Listing  of  specific milestones  shall  not  be  construed  as  a 

representation or warranty, and Consultant makes no representations or warranties, that these milestones measure overall 

contract progress facilitated by the Consultant’s performance of the services, and any particular milestone will be achieved 

or  that any  specific Department or other  requirements ultimately will be met.   The  fee  schedule  shall be based upon 

identified contract milestones, as follows:  

 

Payments and invoicing shall be made in accordance with progress on the following tasks: 

Deliverables 

Application Preparation and Submission 

Documentation & Reporting:  
‐ Establish files, record keeping system, accounting system 
‐ Set up filing & documentation system 
‐ Quarterly reporting to the State  
‐ Reimbursement requests 
‐ Construction Documents 
‐ Close out  
‐ Delivery of audit file & PDF version of file 

Travel: 
‐ Mileage for site visits including but not limited to:  City Council, State Kickoff, Pre‐Construction Meeting, Construction Kickoff, 
Progression/ Percentage of Completion, Closeout. 
‐ Travel Drive Time  
‐ Meeting Time 
‐ Ads to Announce the Public Hearings in the Local Paper if applicable 

Additional Services but not limited to:  
Technical assistance & advice 
Coordination & liaison services 
Assistance with project modification if applicable 
Real property acquisition report assistance and advice if applicable 
 

 
Hourly Rates:  $75 (Seventy‐five dollars) 
 

Payment Terms:  No fees shall be due from City to Consultant if City does not receive a Hazard Mitigation Grant award to 

fund the Project, and in such event the Consultant’s obligation to the City shall be limited to the Phase I Scope of Services 

specified in Attachment A. In any event, total amount due to Consultant will not exceed the Total Fee amount shown above over 

the term of this Agreement as outlined in the Letter of Agreement unless services outside the scope of Basic Services are agreed upon 

by both parties and approved by the City’s governing body.  Quarterly reimbursement requests to the State will request 

reimbursement for 75% of all eligible costs. The State only accepts reimbursement requests greater than $2500. 



 

Attachment C  Page 1 
 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF CHANGE IN SERVICES   

 

PROJECT:    Grant Mitigation Application Preparation and Implementation in Connection with Hazard 

Mitigation Foley Addition Drainage Project 2016/2017 

CONSULTANT:      GrantWorks, Inc.  

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER:   _________________________________________________________ 

ORGINAL CONTRACT DATE:      _________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZATION DATE:    _________________________________________________________ 

 

WORK TO BE ADDED TO OR DELETED FROM THE BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

PREVIOUS CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT:  

GRANTWORKS, INC.   

 

APPROVED BY:   

 

BY:  _____________________________________    DATE: ______________________ 

 

PRINTED NAME & TITLE:  ____________________________________________________________



 

Attachment D  Page 1 
 

 

Attachment D 
Terms and Conditions for Administrative Management Services Agreements 

Utilizing Federal Grant Funds 
 

1. Standards of Performance 
 
(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Consultant will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily 

exercised for similar projects by professional consulting firms who possess special expertise in the types of services 
involved under this Agreement. 

(b) Any provisions in this Agreement pertaining to the City's review, approval and/or acceptance of written materials 
prepared by the Consultant and/or its subconsultants in connection with this Agreement will not diminish the 
Consultant's responsibility for the materials. 

(c) The Consultant will perform all of its services in coordination with the City. The Consultant will advise the City of data 
and information the Consultant needs to perform its services and the City will assemble this data and information for 
the Consultant in a thorough and timely manner. 

(d) If the Federal Funding Accounting and Transparency Act applies to the Project the Consultant must obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System ("DUNS") Number and must register in the Central Contractor Registration ("CCR") 
System and prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, the Consultant will supply the City with both its DUNS 
and CCR registration numbers. 

 
2. Consultant's Records 

(a) All expense records of the Consultant related to this Agreement will be kept on a recognized accounting basis    
acceptable to the City and will be available to the City at mutually convenient times (applies only if the Consultant is 
to be reimbursed for expenses). 

(b) The City, its auditors and federal and state agencies that have monitoring or auditing responsibilities for this 
Agreement will have access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Consultant which are directly 
pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, copying and transcriptions. 

(c) The Consultant will furnish to the City at such time and in such form as the City may require, financial statements 
including audited financial statements, records, reports, data and information, as the 
City may request pertaining to the matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
3. Ownership and Use of Documents 

 
(a) All documents prepared by the Consultant in connection with this Agreement are the property of the City. 
(b) The Consultant will deliver its records and supporting documentation relating to this Agreement to the City upon 

close‐out of the project and the City shall thenceforth be responsible for the maintenance of such records and 
documents. 

 
4. Patent Fees and Royalties 

 

(a) If applicable, the Consultant will pay all license fees, royalties, and other costs incident to the use of any invention, 
design, process, product or device subject to a patent right or copyright held by others in performing the work or in 
the completed project. 

(b) The Consultant will hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City, its officers, agents and employees from and against 
all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney's and expert witness fees, arising out of any claim of 
infringement of a patent right or copyright in the performance of the work or the incorporation in the work of any 
invention, design, process, product or device. 

 



 

Attachment D  Page 2 
 

5. Consultant as Independent Contractor 
 
It is expressly agreed that the Consultant is an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, partner or joint 
venture with the City. The Consultant will not pledge or attempt to pledge the credit of the City. 
 
6. Designation of Consultant's Contact Person 
 
The Consultant agrees to designate in writing a single contact person assigned to coordinate the Consultant's 
performance of obligations under this Agreement. Any changes to this designation must be made by the Consultant in 
writing to the City. 
 
7. Term; Termination of Agreement 

 

(a) The term of this Agreement begins upon the date of its execution by the City, and will end upon the Consultant's 
completion, and the City's acceptance, of all services described in this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 15 calendar days prior written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 

(c) This Agreement may be terminated at will by the either party upon at least 30 calendar days prior written notice to 
the other party. 

(d) In the event of termination as provided in this Section, the Consultant will be compensated for all services performed 
to the termination date which are deemed by the City to be in accordance with this Agreement. This amount will be 
paid by the City upon the Consultant's delivering to the City all information and materials developed or accumulated 
by the Consultant in performing the services described in this Agreement, whether completed or in progress. The 
expense of the reproduction of these items will be borne by the City. 

 
8. Insurance and Indemnity 

 

(a) The Consultant will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City and its employees, agents, officers and servants 
from any and all lawsuits, claims, demands and causes of action of any kind arising from the negligent or intentional 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant, its officers, employees or agents. This will include, but not be 
limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs, reasonable legal fees, and all other expenses 
incurred by the City arising in favor of any party, including the amounts of any damages or awards resulting from 
claims, demands and causes of action for personal injuries, death or damages to property, alleged or actual 
infringement of patents, copyrights and trademarks and without limitation by enumeration all other claims, demands 
or causes of action of every character occurring, resulting or arising from any negligent or intentional wrongful act, 
error or omission of the Consultant and/or its agents and/or employees. This obligation by the Consultant will not be 
limited by reason of the specification of any particular insurance coverage required under the Agreement. 

(b) The Consultant will procure and maintain at its expense insurance with insurance companies authorized to do 
business in the State of Texas, covering all operations under this Agreement, whether performed by the Consultant or 
its agents, subcontractors or employees. Before commencing the work the Consultant will furnish to the City a 
certificate or certificates in a form satisfactory to the City, showing that the Consultant has complied with this 
paragraph. All certificates will provide that the policies will not be canceled until at least 30 calendar days written 
notice has been given to the City. Commercial general liability and motor vehicle insurance will be written with the 
City as an additional insured and will be endorsed to provide a waiver of the carrier's right of subrogation against the 
City.  
The kinds and amounts of insurance required are as follows:  
Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Act of the State 
of Texas. Liability Insurance: (1) Commercial general liability insurance with a combined single limit of $500,000 for 
each occurrence and $500,000 in the aggregate and (2) Motor Vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than 



 

Attachment D  Page 3 
 

$250,000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000 on account of any one accident and in an amount of not less than 
$250,000 for property damage. 

(c) The stated limits of insurance required by this Paragraph are minimum only‐‐they do not limit the Consultant's 
indemnity obligation, and it will be the Consultant's responsibility to determine what limits are adequate. These limits 
may be met by basic policy limits or any combination of basic limits and umbrella limits. The City's acceptance of 
certificates of insurance that do not comply with these requirements in any respect does not release the Consultant 
from compliance with these requirements. 

 
9. Copeland Anti‐Kickback Act Compliance 
 
If applicable, the Consultant will comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 (the Copeland Act). The "Anti‐Kickback" 
section of the Act precludes a contractor or subcontractor from inducing an employee –in any manner ‐‐ to give up any 
part of his/her compensation to which he/she is entitled under his/her contract of employment. 
 
10. Compliance with Laws, Rules & Regulations & Grant Requirements 

 

(a) In performing all services under this Agreement, the Consultant will comply with all local, state and federal laws. 
Specifically, funding for the Project has been made available with Federal funds. The Consultant will comply with all of 
the applicable federal regulations related to the application, acceptance and use of federal funds for the Project. 

(b) The Consultant shall comply with all requirements of the Hazard Mitigation Grant awarded to the City. To the extent 
any such requirement govern the operation of this Agreement, all such applicable requirements of the Grant are 
incorporated into this Agreement whether or not attached hereto. 

 
11. No Waiver of lmmunity 
 
The City's execution of and performance under this Agreement will not act as a waiver by the City of any immunity from 
suit or liability to which it is entitled under applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the City, in executing and 
performing this Agreement, is a governmental entity acting in a governmental capacity. 
 
12. Remedies; No Waiver 
 
In the event of a default or breach of this Agreement by the Consultant, the City reserves the right to choose among the 
remedies for the default or breach available to the City. These remedies may be used in conjunction with one another or 
separately, and together with any other statutory or common law remedies available to the City. Any failure by the City to 
enforce this Agreement with respect to one or more defaults by the Consultant will not waive the City's ability to enforce 
the Agreement after that time. 
 
13. Certification of Eligibility 
 
By submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals, the Consultant certifies that at the time of submission, 
he/she/it is not on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors. 
(a) In the event of placement on this list between the time of bind/proposal submission and time of contract award, the 

bidder/proposer will immediately notify the City. 
(b) Consultant certifies that its subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in any state or federal program. 
(c) Placement of Consultant on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors, false 

certification, or failure to notify City as required may result in City's termination of this Contract for default. 
 
14. Non‐Collusion Certification 
 



 

Attachment D  Page 4 
 

The consultant certifies that, if a proposal was provided that resulted in a contract, that proposal was made without 
collusion with any other person, firm or corporation. 
 
15. Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

(a) This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas Exclusive venue for any dispute arising under this 
Agreement City of Palacios, Texas where this agreement is to be performed. 

(b) As to all acts or failures to act by either party to this Agreement, any applicable statute of limitations will commence 
to run and any alleged cause of action will be deemed to have accrued when the party commencing the cause of 
action knew or should have known of the existence of the subject act or failure to act. 

(c) The Consultant agrees not to use funds received by it under the terms of this Agreement for any partisan political 
activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

(d) The Consultant hereby affirms that Consultant and Consultant's firm have not made or agreed to make any valuable 
gift whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or promise to any person or any of his/her immediate family, having 
the duty to recommend, the right to vote upon, or any other direct influence on the selection of consultants to 
provide professional services to the City within the two years preceding the execution of this Agreement. A campaign 
contribution, as defined by the Texas Election Code will not be considered as a valuable gift for the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

(e) In performing the services required under this Agreement, the Consultant will not discriminate against any person on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. The Consultant agrees not to engage in 
employment practices which have the purpose or effect of discriminating against employees because of race, color, 
sex, religion, national origin, age, disability or ancestry. A breach of this covenant may be regarded as a default by the 
Consultant of the Agreement. 

(f) The Consultant will comply with Executive Order 11246 of 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as 
amended by Executive Order #11375 of 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR 
Chapter 60). 

(g) All references in this Agreement to any particular gender are for convenience only and will be construed and 
interpreted to be of the appropriate gender. The term "will" is mandatory in this Agreement.  

(h) Should any provision in this Agreement be found or deemed to be invalid, this Agreement will be construed as not 
containing the provision and all other provisions which are otherwise lawful will remain in full force and effect, and to 
this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 

(i) All services provided pursuant to this Agreement are for the exclusive use and benefit of the City and the Agreement 
will not give rise to any rights in third parties. 

(j) The City is governed by the Texas Public Information Act (the "Act"), Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. This 
Agreement and all written information generated under this agreement may be subject to release under the Act. The 
Consultant will not make any reports, information, data, etc. generated under this Agreement available to any 
individual or organization without the written approval of the City. 

(k) In the event that the performance by either the City or the Consultant of any of its obligations under this Agreement 
is interrupted or delayed by events outside of their control such as acts of God, war, riot or civil commotion, then the 
party is excused from such performance for the period of time reasonably necessary to remedy the effects of such 
events. 

(l) The City and the Consultant, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives of such other party with respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The City and the Consultant may 
not assign, sublet or transfer any interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other. The Consultant 
will notify the City, in writing, of any change in its partnership/ownership within 30 calendar days of such change. 

(m) The Agreement including any appendices and referenced attachments represents the entire and integrated 
Agreement between the City and the Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements either written or oral. In the event of a dispute between the parties regarding the intent of this 
Agreement, both parties agree that this Agreement will be construed in a manner consistent with the City's Request 



 

Attachment D  Page 5 
 

for Proposals, the Consultant's Proposal Response, and the public record of the City Council's approval of the 
Agreement as applicable. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument which must be signed by both 
the City and the Consultant. Any such authorization of change in services or amendment must be approved by the 
City's governing body unless the compensation for which does not exceed $50,000.00. 

(n) Any exhibits and/or attachments attached to this Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as 
though included verbatim herein. In the event of any conflict between these Terms and Conditions and the provisions 
of any exhibit or attachment to this Agreement, these Terms and Conditions will govern and control. 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

  

 
JOHN C. SARDELICH – Mayor 
JOHNNY TRAN – Mayor  Pro-Tem – Councilmember Place 1 
JUDY CHAVEZ – Councilmember Place 2 

MARY CROCKER – Councilmember Place 3 
GLEN SMITH – Councilmember Place 4 
ANDY ERDELT – Councilmember Place 5 
TROY LEWIS – Councilmember Place 6 

  

CITY OF PALACIOS 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

May 10, 2016 
 

INCOMING & OUTGOING COUNCILMEMBER RECEPTION 
6:30PM 

Drinks and snacks 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Sardelich called the Regular Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
City Staff present: David Kocurek, Angela Flores, Chief Miles, Jackie Jones 
Council Members Absent:  Councilmember Chavez, Councilmember Erdelt 
  
INVOCATION – Mayor Sardelich 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Tran 
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG – Councilmember Tran 
PLEDGE TO PALACIOS FLAG – Councilmember Tran 
 
VISITOR / CITIZEN FORUM –  Larry Glenn asked for protocol on the recycling situation.  Felt 
the matter was handled with a piece of property being taken from the City Clean Up.  Susan 
Dancer, the director of Texas Blessings, spoke about Palacios Impound needing change.  Spoke 
about spay/neuter laws needing to be in effect.  Brought a picture of Palacios Pound that showed a 
dog in feces.  She asks that there is transparency in the pound and that she be put on a future 
agenda to talk about ordinances she would like in place.  Vonnie Dunn, self-proclaimed Cat-Lady 
who runs CART says to keep all cats that are fixed.  She will fix cats as well.  Asks for spay/neuter 
law.  Amanda Foytik spoke about how she made an anti-tethering law.  Melony Colina spoke 
about the changes being made to Sweeny Pound such as new facilities being paid for by Zachry.  
Alicia Karsh says because of volunteers she is able to save many animals in Sweeny.  Chip Woolf 
was thankful for the Agenda Packet being put on the webpage.  Spoke about special items not 
being very descriptive in the budget.  Also said he still had concerns about money spent on EDC. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

1. Certificate of Recognition for Outstanding Recycling Efforts in 2015. 
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED 
1. Discuss and consider action to approve the following consent agenda items: 

a)  Minutes of the April 26, 2016 Regular Council Meeting  
Mayor Sardelich motioned to approve the consent agenda. 
Councilmember Crocker seconded. 
There was no opposition. 
With no opposition the motion carried. 
2. Present the Certificate of Election and administer the Oath of Office for the new Mayor and 

Councilmember for Place 6.  
Mayor Sardelich and Councilmember Lewis were given plaques in honor of their time spent 
with the City Council. 
The new Mayor Smith and Councilmember McGovern were given the Oath of Office by City 
Secretary Angela Flores. 

3. Discuss and accept the Quarterly Investment. 
Councilmember McGovern moved to accept the Quarterly Investment. 
Mayor Smith seconded. 
There was no opposition. 
With no opposition the motion carried. 

4. Discuss and accept the Quarterly Financials. 
Councilmember Tran moved to accept the Quarterly Financials. 
Councilmember McGovern seconded. 

aflores
12. Discuss and consider action to approve the following consent agenda items:a) Minutes of the May 10, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 



Page 2 of 2 
 

There was no opposition. 
With no opposition the motion carried. 

5. Discuss and consider action to approve Ordinance 2016-O-4 amending the City of Palacios 
2015-2016 budget. 
Councilmember Crocker motioned to approve Ordinance 2016-O-4. 
Councilmember Tran seconded. 
There was no opposition. 
With no opposition the motion carried. 

6. Discuss and consider action to approve first reading of Ordinance 2016-O-5 JEC Franchise 
Agreement. 
Councilmember Crocker motion to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2016-O-5. 
Councilmember Tran seconded. 
There was no opposition. 
With no opposition the motion carried. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
In accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, (Open Meetings Law) the Council  
May go into Executive (closed) session in order to: 
Consult with its attorney (551.071)  
Discuss Real Estate transaction (551.072) 
Deliberation regarding prospective gifts or donation (551.073) 
Discuss personnel matters (551.074)  
Deliberation regarding security devices (551.076)  
Discuss economic development negotiations (551.087) 
 
ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION  
               
ADJOURN 

Councilmember Crocker moved to adjourn at 8:08 pm. 
Councilmember Tran seconded. 
Opposition: None. 
With no opposition, the motion carried. 

 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Glen Smith, Mayor 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Angela Flores, City Secretary   



aflores
12. Discuss and consider action to approve the following consent agenda items:

aflores
b) Travel expenses Mayor Glen Smith. 









7 
 

 

ADJOURN 
 
In compl i ance wi th the Ameri cans  wi th Di sabi l i t i es  Act,  the C i ty of  Pal aci os  wi l l  provide fo r  reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending publ ic meetings.   To better serve attendees, requests should be received 
24 hours prior to the meeting.  Please contact Ci ty Hall , at 361.972.3605. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I certify that a copy of the May 24, 2016 agenda of items to be considered by the City Council was posted on the City Hall 
bulletin board by 5:00p.m. on May 20, 2016. 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Call to Order/ Invocation
	Visitor Forum
	Administrative Reports
	Hurricane Preparedness 2016.pdf

	Action Item 3- Oath of Office- Judy Chavez
	Action Item 4- Lester Contracting TxCDBD Water Improvements.pdf
	Action Item 5-Urban Engineering Agreement - Bethany Park Outfall
	Action Item 6- Urban Engineering Agreement- Perryman Outfall 
	Action Item 7- Urban Engineering Agreement- Foley Addition 
	Action Item 8-Grant Works Agreement- Bethany Park Outfall 
	Action Item 9-Grant Works Agreement - Perryman Ave. Outfall
	Action Item 10-Grant Works Agreement- Foley Addition
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes of the May 10, 2016 Meeting
	Mayor Glen Smith Travel Expense.pdf

	Adjourn

